
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
December 21, 2016 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Pastor Joe Bankson of Victory Church 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council workshop November 30, 2016. 
2. Groundbreaking MMI Marden Road Interchange December 1, 2016 

 
AGENDA REVIEW 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize a Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement with Emerson North Townhomes (136 Units). 
2. Authorize the closure of roads for the annual Martin Luther King Parade. 
3. Approve the sale of alcohol at City events. 
4. Authorize an expenditure from Federal Law Enforcement Trust Fund for an Annual National Conference. 
5. Approve a part-time Accounting Clerk position in the Finance Department. 
6. Authorize the purchase of an EMC Storage Array and appliance for the City’s virtual environment. 
7. Authorize the purchase of four Pumps for sanitary sewer pumping stations. 
8. Authorize the purchase of vehicles for the Construction, Water Maintenance and Sewer Maintenance Divisions. 
9. Authorize the purchase of a vactor truck for the Sewer Maintenance Division. 

10. Award a bid to Providence Construction and Development for the Ocoee Apopka Road Reclaimed Water System extension. 
11. Authorize a Reclaimed Water Main Oversizing Agreement with the Silver Oak subdivision developer. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Vistas at Water’s Edge – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
2. Final Development Plan – Tractor Supply – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2499 – Second Reading – Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative Kyle Wilkes 
2. Ordinance No. 2510 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 74 “Business Tax Receipts” – Legislative James Hitt 
3. Ordinance No. 2511 – Second Reading - Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86 “Vehicles for Hire.” – Legislative  James Hitt 
4. Ordinance No. 2531 – Second Reading – Annexation - Legislative  David Moon 
5. Ordinance No. 2532 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative Elizabeth Florence 
6. Ordinance No. 2533 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Elizabeth Florence 
7. Ordinance No. 2534 – Second Reading – Comp Plan Amendment – Capital Improvements Element – Legislative Kyle Wilkes 
8. Ordinance No. 2535 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Kyle Wilkes  
9. Ordinance No. 2536 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment – Legislative Elizabeth Florence 

10. Ordinance No. 2537 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Elizabeth Florence 
11. Ordinance No. 2538 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative Kyle Wilkes 

1



  
 

12. Ordinance No. 2539 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Kyle Wilkes  
13. Ordinance No. 2540 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Elizabeth Florence 
14. Ordinance No. 2541 – Second Reading – Right-of-Way Vacate – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

December 23, 2016 – Holiday – City Offices Closed 

December 26, 2016 – Holiday – City Offices Closed 

December 26, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

January 2, 2016 – Holiday – City Offices Closed 

January 4, 2016    1:30pm – Council Meeting 

January 5, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up  

January 10, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

January 18, 2016    7:00pm – Council Meeting 

January 23, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council workshop November 30, 2016. 
  

3



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the City Council Workshop held on November 30, 2016, at 1:30 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer called the meeting to order and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

COPS Grant presentation: 

 

Mike McKinley, Chief of Police, reviewed the COPS Grant and funding, as well as how they 

plan to proceed with implementation from a budgetary standpoint. He advised there is a match 

for the grant. The Apopka Police Department has been awarded a grant to hire five new police 

officers through the 2016 COPS Hiring Program (CHP). He stated the estimated federal funds to 

be awarded is $625,000 with a local match of approximately $339,800 over the three year grant 

period. He affirmed the City will be required to retain all sworn officer positions for a minimum 

of twelve months following the thirty-six month federal grant period. These retained positions 

must be added to the law enforcement budget over and above the number of locally funded 

positions that would exist in the absence of the grant. He explained that these five officers cannot 

be used to supplant the budgeted five officers approved during the budget process. He further 

affirmed five vehicles for the new positions will be financed along with the approved vehicle 

allotment for this fiscal year. The vehicle budget impact will be in FY 2017-2018. Chief 

McKinley said by staggered hiring, hiring the five grant funded officers in January, with a 

$75,485 match, and hiring the budgeted officers in March and June, there will be a personnel 

savings of $172,838.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer stated with no objections, the consensus of the Council is to direct staff to 

move forward with the COPS Grant.  

 

John Land Statues: 

 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, discussed the two statues of Mayor Land that are in the process 

of being fabricated and delivered. He said the first statue to be delivered is to be placed on the 

front lawn of City Hall. The artist reviewed the grounds and provided suggestions of placement. 

One suggestion is to place the statue in front of the flags facing S.R. 441, and the other 

4



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of City Council Workshop held on November 30, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

 

suggestion is to the west side of the lawn facing east looking toward the flags and the area the 

Masonic Lodge is located. He explained staff concerns of placement in front of the flags due to 

the speed of vehicles and not being able to see the statue.  He said staff suggested the west lawn 

area may be the better location. He explained with this location, there are two cedar trees that 

should be removed.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the two suggested locations as well as the type of base. It was the 

consensus of the Council that the Land family should be contacted regarding their preference. 

 

Recreation Master Plan: 

 

David Burgoon, Recreation Director, provided a review of the Recreation Master Plan.  He 

stated the Mission statement is:   

“To provide a variety of safe, wholesome, innovative, and diverse recreation programs, 

activities and facilities to enrich the quality of life for citizens and visitors of Apopka, 

through quality leadership, fiscal stability, and responsible planning.”  

 

In addition, the Vision statement is:  

“Our vision is to provide recreational facilities and programs that are inclusive, affordable, 

diverse, and nurture a healthy lifestyle. We will embrace and build upon the city’s history 

and natural assets as a leader in recreation and outdoor activities.  We will offer services 

that enhance quality of life.  We will promote the equitable distribution of resources 

throughout the Apopka community.” 

 

Mr. Burgoon advised the Master Plan involves a long term document that establishes community 

goals and visions for the future. The 2030 Comprehensive Plan requires a Parks and Recreation 

Master Plan to be completed by Policy 3.3 of the Recreation and Open Space Element.  He 

reviewed the existing recreation facilities and explained they were broken down into three 

classifications to include Neighborhood Parks, Community Parks, and Special Use Facilities. He 

reviewed a map showing where all of the Parks are located within the Apopka area. He advised 

the next step is to determine what we need. He explained the current level of service standards 

are set by Policy 1.1 of the Recreation Open Space Element and the adopted level of service is 

3.0 acres per 1,000 residents. The current population of 45,587 gives us a level of service for 136 

acres.  Our current park acreage is 233.56 which is approximately 96.8 acres above our level of 

service standard. He declared to keep in mind that 78% of the park acreage is at the NW 

complex. He reviewed future park recommendations and existing plans for the same. The master 

plan recommendations for all parks is to improve landscaping and beautification, increase the 

number of benches, picnic and grilling options, use consistent signage, bench tables in other 

facilities to create a sense of place, and a brand for Apopka parks, use materials that promote a 

theme for Apopka as a leader in outdoor recreation. He reviewed specific recommendations for 

Alonzo Williams Park, and a plan for creating a centralized park area at Kit Land Nelson, 

Edwards Field, and Fran Carlton. Program recommendations include Adopt a Park, Playful City, 

and Get Active.  

 

Following discussion, it was the consensus of Council for staff to continue working on a central 

park concept, but to receive input or feedback from the community. Mayor Kilsheimer said they 

could have formal input at a Council meeting, however, the Council can take informal input 

5



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of City Council Workshop held on November 30, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

 

individually. The consensus was to maintain the splash pad as an item on the next workshop 

meeting and be prepared to vote at a future Council meeting.  

 

Council recessed at 3:09 p.m. and reconvened at 3:19 p.m. 

 

Recreation Impact Fees: 

 

Henry Thomas, PRMG, reviewed a PowerPoint presentation to provide an overview of the 

analysis for the recreation impact fee study.  It was recommended to do away with the hotel/motel 

recreation impact fee as the study does not show a lot of major growth in this area for the near 

future. He affirmed the current fees have been in place since 1991. The recommendations in 2006 

were not adopted at that time. The existing rates are $241.05 for residential impact fee and $50.00 

for hotel/motel impact feel.  The proposed rates are $1,060 for residential impact fee, and making 

the hotel/motel impact fee not applicable. He advised staff proposed impact feel levels at 80% of 

the full fee level, which would be $848 for the residential parks and recreation impact fee.  He 

advised the fees can be incrementally phased-in to the full level over time.  

 

Following discussion, it was the consensus of the Council to provide direction to staff to move 

forward with 100% of the proposed fee amount, as well as the full proposed fee amount for police 

and fire impact fees.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 4:07 p.m. 
 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

___________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

6



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Groundbreaking MMI Marden Road Interchange December 1, 2016 
  

7



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the December 1, 2016, MMI Marden Road Interchange Groundbreaking at 

11:00 a.m. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

The City Council attended and participated in the Marden Road Interchange groundbreaking on 

December 1, 2016.   

 

Angel de la Portilla welcomed everyone and said this was a very exciting project. He recognized 

members of their team and he thanked the City Council and staff for their support and work on 

this project.  

 

Mike Wright, MMI, said they have been working on this project over the past five years. He 

recognized their partners on this project and thanked them, as well as members of their team. He 

thanked the City and spoke of how the City has worked with them to accomplish this.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said it takes bold vision and courage, as well as creativity to pull together and 

partnership on a project such as this.  

 

At this time members of the MMI Development team, Mayor Kilsheimer, Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Bankson, and Becker, and City Administrator Glenn Irby participated in the 

groundbreaking. 

 
 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

8



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Authorize a Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement with Emerson North Townhomes (136 Units). 
  

9



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

 OTHER:   Agreement 
  
SUBJECT:  EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES (136 UNITS)) 

   

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

The City’s standard Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement has been prepared for Emerson North 

Townhomes, located at 1701 Ocoee Apopka Road, south of S.R. 414 and west of Marden Road. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 

N/A 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement for Emerson 

North Townhomes. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

10



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT  
PAGE 2 

 

 

 

EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES 

 21.42 +/- Acres (17.1 acres residential\4.24 future R.O.W) 

Proposed Number of Units: 136 

Parcel ID#: 20-21-28-0000-00-001 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Authorize the closure of roads for the annual Martin Luther King Parade. 
  

18



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

  x   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 21, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:               Recreation 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        Map 

       OTHER:   

  
 

SUBJECT: SOUTH APOPKA MINISTERIAL ALLIANCE – MARTIN LUTHER KING JR., 

PARADE.  

 

Request: AUTHORIZE THE CLOSURE OF ROADS.  

  
SUMMARY: 

 

South Apopka Ministerial Alliance is requesting the City Council approve road closures for the annual 

Martin Luther King Parade being held on Monday, January 16th, 2017 beginning at 2:00pm.  The Parade 

is to begin at 519 South Central Ave, traveling west on W. Station St, traveling south on S. Lake Ave, then 

traveling west on W. 13th Street, and ending at John Bridges Community Center at 445 W. 13th Street.   

 

Street closures are requested for the following streets: the intersection of S. Central Ave & E. 5th St, W. 

Station St, and all intersections on Marvin C. Zanders from 5th Street to 10th St. The Development Review 

Committee has reviewed the special events permit application and has found it to be consistent with the 

Land Development Code.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the closure of the roads associated with the South Apopka Ministerial Alliance Parade on 

Monday, January 16, 2017.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

19



20



21



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Approve the sale of alcohol at City events. 
  

22



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Recreation 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  ALCOHOL SALES AT CITY EVENTS 

 

REQUEST: APPROVAL 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
Ordinance No. 2376 which requires City Council approval for the sale, consumption and carrying of alcoholic 

beverages on City-owned property during events or programs.  

 

Staff is requesting approval for sale of alcoholic beverages at the following City sponsored events being held at 

the Northwest Recreation Complex during fiscal year 2017. 



 February 10 & 11 – Old Florida Outdoor Festival: Activities include live local and national country 

music performers, great food from local restaurant partners and kids entertainment area.  

 May 6 – Farm to Feast: A food & wine event  

 July 4 – Fireworks at the Amphitheater: Second annual family event that will have fireworks, live 

music, vendors and rides.  

 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the sale of alcohol at the Old Florida Outdoor Festival, Farm to Fest, & Fireworks at the Amphitheater 

events. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

23



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Authorize an expenditure from Federal Law Enforcement Trust Fund for an Annual National Conference. 
  

24



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 21, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:              Request Memo 

_     OTHER:             Letter from Sheriff Demings 
  

 

SUBJECT: EXPENDITURE FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS. 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE AN EXPENDITURE FOR THE 31st ANNUAL NATIONAL 

CONFERENCE ON PREVENTING CRIME IN THE BLACK COMMUNITY. 

 

 

SUMMARY:  

 

The Apopka Police Department requests City Council approval for the expenditure of funds from the 

Federal Law Enforcement Trust Fund in the amount of $3,000 for the 31st annual National Conference on 

Preventing Crime in the Black Community sponsored by Attorney General Pam Bondi.  This annual 

conference is designed to foster communication and action among practitioners through the sharing of 

innovative ideas and prevention strategies that have been successful.  The local hosts include the Orange 

County Sheriff’s Office and the Orlando Police Department.  This expenditure will be used to ensure this 

conference will be a success and to defray local agency costs.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Federal Law Enforcement Trust Fund    
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Finance Department to disburse $3,000 from the Federal Law Enforcement Trust Fund.  
  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

25



 
 

 

 

 

 

City of Apopka 
Police Department 

112 E. 6
th

 Street Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

Date:  December 21, 2016 

  

To:  Honorable Joseph E. Kilsheimer and Commissioners 

 

RE:  LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 

 

 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval for the expenditure of funds from the 

Federal Law Enforcement Trust Fund in the amount of $3,000.00 for the 31
st
 annual National 

Conference on Preventing Crime in the Black Community sponsored by Attorney General Pam 

Bondi. This annual conference is designed to foster communication and action among practitioners 

through the sharing of innovative ideas and prevention strategies that have been successful. The 

local hosts include the Orange County Sheriff’s Office and the Orlando Police Department. This 

expenditure will be used to ensure this conference will be a success and to defray local agency 

costs.   

 

Respectfully, 

 
Michael McKinley 

Chief of Police         

26



27



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Approve a part-time Accounting Clerk position in the Finance Department. 
  

28



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Finance Dept. 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  PART TIME POSITION – ACCOUNTING CLERK 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE POSITION IN THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

During 2016 two city functions, purchasing and payroll, were absorbed by the Finance Department.  This 

provided additional staff to the department but also additional workload for existing staff when either of 

these employees were out of the office.  Phone calls increased as well as coverage responsibilities. 

 

In September, one of the long tenured Finance Department employees left the city.  At the same time, the 

City was implementing their new financial software package and changing the bank deposit methodology.  

With the vacancy and the learning curve involved with working in the new system, many of the accounting 

duties were reassigned and the department was somewhat reorganized.  Temporarily the bank deposit was 

moved to the Utility Billing division [UB].  With the implementation of the new Utility Billing software, 

the UB staff no longer has the time to perform the bank deposit so this duty must return to the Finance 

Department.   

 

The addition of a part time employee is necessary.  The Finance Department would like to hire an 

Accounting Clerk to perform the daily deposit, answer the phones, and provide cross training within several 

divisions in the department.  The position would be a grade 108 starting at $15 per hour and work between 

25 and 30 hours per week.  Total cost for FY17 is estimated to be $22,000. 

 

Personnel cost savings resulted from the September vacancy will provide ample coverage for the cost of 

this position. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is available in the FY17 Finance Budget resulting from a vacancy of a higher paid position. 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the additional part time position in the Finance Department for an Accounting Clerk. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

29



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Authorize the purchase of an EMC Storage Array and appliance for the City’s virtual environment. 
  

30



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 21, 2016  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:      Information Technology          

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE   
 

REQUEST: EMC STORAGE ARRAY FOR THE CITY’S VIRTUAL COMPUTING 

ENVIRONMENT. 
  
SUMMARY:   

 
The Information Technology Department supports over 300 virtual computers and servers in our highly 

virtualized environment.  We seek to expand our current storage solution with a high performance All Flash 

Storage Array.  It is highly scalable for future expansion needs avoiding wholesale replacement and eliminating 

CAPEX expenditures every three years.  This hardware platform lies within the manufacturer’s product road 

map for at least the next decade.   

 

The proposal provides for a storage array that replicates the City’s mission critical servers and desktop 

environments into a secondary, hyper-converged infrastructure appliance providing a solution to our current 

deficiency as it relates to BCDR (Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery).   

 

This hardware will be purchased off of the State of Florida Alternate Source Contract and the EMC NASPO 

ValuePoint Master Price Agreement in the amount of $189,831.97. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
Included in the 2016/2017 FY Information Technology budget. 
    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 
Authorize the purchase of capital equipment in the amount of $189,831.97 to CDWG.   

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

31



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Authorize the purchase of four Pumps for sanitary sewer pumping stations. 
  

32



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X    CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: PUMP REPLACEMENT AT TWO SANITARY SEWER PUMPING STATIONS  
   

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF FOUR (4) PUMPS FROM XYLEM WATER 

SOLUTIONS USA, INC. 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Staff has obtained a proposal from Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc., for the purchase of four (4) new 

23hp Flygt pumps at the Clear Lake Estates and Lake Heiniger sanitary sewer pumping stations. The cost 

is $14,200 per pump for a total of $56,800. Due to growth and increases in capacity in the western 

segment of the utility service area, it is necessary to replace these pumps to provide the correct pump 

design conditions to adequately serve this segment of the service area. 

   
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

$55,500 is included in the Water and Wastewater Fund FY 16/17 Budget.  Actual cost of the equipment is 

$56,800 and cost savings from other budgetary items within the account line will be used to fund the 

difference.     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Purchase of four (4) 23HP Flygt Pumps for sanitary sewer pumping stations from Xylem 

Water Solutions USA, Inc., for $56,800. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

33



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Authorize the purchase of vehicles for the Construction, Water Maintenance and Sewer Maintenance Divisions. 
 

 
  

34



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X    CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: CAPITAL EQUIPMENT  
   

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF NEW EQUIPMENT FROM PALMETTO FORD 

TRUCK SALES, INC. 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The purchase of new capital equipment for the Public Services Departments Construction, Water 

Maintenance, and Sewer Maintenance Divisions. This Capital Equipment will replace inoperable 

equipment that will be surplused. Pricing is made available from Palmetto Ford Truck Sales; Inc. through 

the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract is as follows: 

 

Truck Division Budgeted Price 

F-550 4X4 Construction $56,550 $  54,355 

F-550 4X2 Water Maint. $45,000 $  48,095 

F-550 4X2  Sewer Maint. $52,500 $  48,095 

Total  $154,050  $150,545 

 

The additional cost over budget for the Water Maintenance truck will be paid with additional savings 

experienced from the construction and sewer maintenance vehicles shown above. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Reclaimed Water Impact Fees Fund FY16/17.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of capital equipment in the amount of $150,545. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

35



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Authorize the purchase of a vactor truck for the Sewer Maintenance Division. 
  

36



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X    CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: CAPITAL EQUIPMENT  
   

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF NEW EQUIPMENT FROM SOUTHERN 

SEWER EQUIPMENT SALES AND LOU BACHRODT FREIGHTLINER 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

A vital piece of equipment in maintaining our sewer system is a vactor truck. The current vactor truck is a 

Vac Con, which was obtained in 1994. The typical life span of a vactor truck is 10 years. The current 

vactor truck is inoperable. A new Vac Con is made available from Southern Sewer Equipment Sales and 

Lou Bachrodt Freightliner through the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. The pricing is as follows: 

Vac Con $252,812.03 and the Chassis for the Vac Con is $94,800 for a total of $347,612.03. 
 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

$375,000.00 is included in the Water Wastewater Fund FY 16/17 Budget.  Actual cost of the equipment is 

$347,612.03.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of capital equipment in the amount of $347,612.03. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

37



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

10. Award a bid to Providence Construction and Development for the Ocoee Apopka Road Reclaimed Water System extension. 
  

38



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X    CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: OCOEE APOPKA ROAD RECLAIMED WATER SYSTEM (RWS) EXTENSION 

FROM HARMON ROAD TO ALSTON HAY BOULEVARD. 

 

   

REQUEST: AWARD THE BID TO PROVIDENCE CONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT.  

  
SUMMARY: 

 

On November 3, 2016, the City received three (3) sealed bids for the Ocoee Apopka Road Reclaimed 

Water System (RWS) Extension from Harmon Road to Alston Bay Boulevard. The bids are as follows 

 

Company Bid 

McKenzie Contracting, LLC $208,305 

Providence Construction and Development $236,580 

C E James, Inc. $323,200 

 

McKenzie Contracting, LLC did not comply with the requirements of prior work as stated in Section 

00020 of the Bid Documents and was notified by Staff on November 17, 2016. 

 

Subsequent to the rejection of the lowest bidder referenced above, Providence Construction and 

Development complied with the requirements of the bid document and submitted the lowest qualified bid.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

$412,500 is included in the Reclaimed Water System Impact Fee Fund FY16/17 Budget. Actual cost of 

the bid is $236,580.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Award the bid To Providence Construction and Development for $236,580 for the Ocoee Apopka Road 

RWS extension from Harmon Road to Alston Bay Boulevard. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

39



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

11. Authorize a Reclaimed Water Main Oversizing Agreement with the Silver Oak subdivision developer. 
  

40



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:   Public Services             

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: SILVER OAK SUBDIVISION  

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE A RECLAIMED WATER MAIN OVERSIZING AGREEMENT  
  
SUMMARY:  
 

The City’s Reclaimed Water Master Plan calls for the installation of a 12-inch diameter reclaimed water 

main (RWM) across the parcel being developed as the Silver Oak subdivision. The development requires 

only a 6-inch diameter RWM to serve the subdivision. The installation of the 12-inch RWM will provide 

the infrastructure needed to develop the city’s reclaimed water distribution system in the area of the Silver 

Oak subdivision. Article 6.04.01.D. of the Land Development Code (LDC) allows the city to pay the 

developer the difference in material costs for the oversizing of utility mains installed in accordance with 

the main sizing guidelines provided in our utility master plans. The oversizing agreement material cost 

reimbursement to the developer will involve the installation of approximately 2,422 feet of RWM with 

approximately 12 valves. The initial oversizing agreement approximate cost will be $35,896.56.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 

Reclaimed Water Impact Fee Fund FY16/17.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Authorize the City Administrator to enter into a Reclaimed Water Main Oversizing Agreement with the 

Silver Oak subdivision developer. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director 

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

41



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Vistas at Water’s Edge – Quasi-Judicial    David 
Moon 

  

42



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Preliminary Dev. Plan   Site Plan 

    Landscape Plan 

    Wall Details 

    Recreation Plan 
  
SUBJECT:    MASTER SITE PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – VISTAS 

AT WATERS EDGE RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE MASTER SITE PLAN/PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR VISTAS AT WATERS EDGE RESIDENTIAL 

SUBDIVISION; AND ISSUE THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

ORDER. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Vistas at Waters Edge, LLC  
   
PROJECT ENGINEER: Madden, Moorhead & Stokes, Inc. c/o David Stokes, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of Hooper Farms Road and West of Binion Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Mixed - Use (Max.15 du/ac)  
 
ZONING:   M-EC 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single-Family Residential Subdivision (147 Lots; typical lots widths range 

from 60 ft. to 75 ft.;  lots range from a min. of 7,500 sq. ft. to 24,000 sq. ft.) 
 
PROPOSED DENSITY:        1.97 du/ac 
 
TRACT SIZE:   75.24 +/- acres 
 
DEVELOPABLE AREA:       74.54 +/- acres 
 
OPEN SPACE:  21.52 acres 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

43



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 

VISTAS AT WATERS EDGE – MASTER SITE PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE # 2 
 
 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City)  Mixed Use M-EC Hooper’s Landscape Nursery 

East (City) Mixed Use M-EC Vacant land 

South (City) Institutional/Public Use PO/I Vacant Land 

West (County) Rural A-2 St Johns River Water Mgt. District 

 

Project Use:  The Vistas at Water’s Edge- Master Site Plan/Preliminary Development Plan proposes the 

development of 147 single family residential lots and 21.52 acres of active and passive recreation space.  

Located within the Mixed-EC zoning district, the Vistas provides a diversity of lot widths and lots sizes as 

follows: 

 

Lot Widths 

(Typical) 
Number Percentage 

60 101 68.03 

65 3 2.04 

70 39 27.21 

75 4 2.72 

 

The proposed minimum living area, in aggregate of 2,000 square feet, with a no individual unit being less 

than 1,600 square feet as set forth in Section 2.02.20.B.4 of the Land Development Code.     At the time of 

the final development plan, developer will be requested to establish criteria to assure a 2,000 sq. ft. 

aggregate is monitored and maintained during the building permit application cycle. 

 

The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 

Front* 25’ 

Side 5’ 

Rear 20’ 

Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 

 
Access:  Ingress/egress access points for the development will be via full access onto Binion Road with a 
secondary gated emergency and pedestrian access point west of lot 115 connecting to Binion Road. 
 
Stormwater: There are two (2) retention ponds designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 
requirements. 
 
Recreation:  Per Section 2.02.20.H.4a of the Land Development Code, developments made up of less than 
300 units shall be required to construct a minimum total of 2,000 sq. ft. of facility or facilities for a 
Neighborhood Activity Center. The developer is providing 21.52 acres of active and passive recreation 
space and is proposing to construct a 1,720 s.f. clubhouse with swimming pool, picnic area and yoga lawn 

44



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 

VISTAS AT WATERS EDGE – MASTER SITE PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE # 3 
 
within the active recreational space. Up to 25% of the Neighborhood Activity Center may be in open type 
facilities.  The developer agreed to place a 30-foot wide landscape buffer along Binion Road and to construct 
an 11-foot wide multi-use trail.  The trail will be dedicated to the City as part of the East Shore Trail System.  
Furthermore, the Master Plan\PDP included passive parks (aka landscaped focal points) at strategic 
locations to break up long rows of homes and also provide views of Lake Apopka.  
 

Buffer/Tree Program:  The applicant has provided a thirty (30) feet wide landscape buffer along Binion 

Road with an eleven (11) feet wide multi-use trail.  The applicant has proposed to use a combination of 

decorative precast and wrought-iron style fence material Binion Road. 

 

The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 

 

Total inches on-site:        2592 

Total number of specimen trees: 29 

Total inches removed:  1725 

Total inches retained: 867 

Total inches replaced:  1725 

Total Inches (Post Development): 2592 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency 

mitigation agreement or letter has been approved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this 

agreement.  The schools zoned to receive students from this community are the following: Apopka 

Elementary School, Wolf Lake Middle School and Wekiva High School.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment 

and rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding 

impact on adjacent parcels.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

December 13, 2016 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

December 21, 2016 - City Council, 7:00 p.m.  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Vistas at Waters Edge – Master Site 

Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of the staff report. 

 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on December 13, 2016, recommended approval (5-1) of the 
Vistas at Waters Edge - Master Site Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of the staff 
report. 
 
Approve the Master Site Plan/Preliminary Development Plan for Vistas at Waters Edge Subdivision, and 
issue the Preliminary Development Order. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 
 
 

45



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 

VISTAS AT WATERS EDGE – MASTER SITE PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE # 4 
 
Application:  Vistas at Waters Edge - Master Site Plan/Preliminary Development Plan 
Owner Applicant: Vistas at Waters Edge, LLC    
Project Engineer: Madden, Moorhead, Stokes, Inc., c/o David A. Stokes, P.E. 
Parcel ID No.s:    19-21-28-0000-00-011, 19-21-28-0000-00-021 & 19-21-28-0000-022 
Total Acres:  75.24 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 
 
 

SUBJECT PROPERTIES 

46



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 

VISTAS AT WATERS EDGE – MASTER SITE PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE # 5 
 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 
 

  
  

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Final Development Plan – Tractor Supply – Quasi-Judicial       David 
Moon 

  

56



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 
X OTHER: Final Development Plan  Site/Landscape Plans 
   Color Rendering 
   Building Elevations 
   Photometric Plan 

  
SUBJECT:    TRACTOR SUPPLY APOPKA – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
    
REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR TRACTOR 

SUPPLY APOPKA; AND ISSUANCE OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
ORDER. 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Michael L. Hart, Margie A. Hart and Apopka Regional Properties, LLP. 
 
ENGINEER:                         Hanlex Civil, LLC, c/o Nathan Bullard, MBA P.E. 
 
ARCHITECT:   Rabits and Romano Architecture 
 
LOCATION: 180 West 1st Street (South of 1st Street and East of Washington Avenue) 

 
PARCEL ID #:  09-21-28-0196-10-040, 09-21-28-0196-10-064 and 09-21-28-0196-10-122 
 
LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-2 
 
EXISTING USE:                    Horticultural Nursery 
 
PROPOSED USE: Retail Center 
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.90 +/- Acres (169,884 S.F.) 
   
BUILDING SIZE: 19,027 S.F. and 18,000 S.F. Outdoor Display Area 
 
BUILDING HEIGHT: 30 Feet Max.     
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.11 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:    
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 

57



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
TRACTOR SUPPLY APOPKA – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Office PO/I Office Building and Residential Duplex 

East (City) Commercial C-2 SFR (4) 

South (City) Commercial C-2 Gas Station and Automotive Repair 

West (City) Commercial C-2 Retail and Warehouse Buildings 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Tractor Supply- Apopka – Final Development Plan proposes 19,027 

square feet of commercial retail space with and 18,000 square feet outdoor display area.  The 3.9 acres site is 

located south of West 1st Street and East of Washington Ave.   

 

PARKING:  A total of 89 parking spaces are being proposed (113 required by code) of which four (4) are 

reserved as handicapped parking spaces.  In accordance with LDC 6.03.02, the number of proposed parking 

spaces are 24 less the required amount.  The applicant is requesting a waiver to adjust the parking requirements 

in accordance with LDC 6.03.01.H. Traffic & Mobility Consultants (TMC), the applicant’s transportation 

consultant, has prepared a parking analysis in response to the applicant’s parking waiver request.    

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development 

Design Guidelines and are consistent with the elevations submitted with the Preliminary Development Plan.   

   

STORMWATER:  Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site retention pond.  The 

on-site stormwater management system is designed to meet standards set forth in the Land Development Code.  

  

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:   A minimum ten foot landscape buffer is provided along 1st, Washington Ave 

and 2nd Street. The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The planting 

materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in 

Ordinance No. 2069.   
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
 
Total inches on-site:       606 
Total number of specimen trees:       8 
Total specimen removed:         5  
Total specimen inches retained:   130    
Total specimen inches removed:   150 
Total non-specimen inches removed:   274    
Total non-specimen inches retained:      52 
Total inches replaced:      243.5 
Total inches post development:   485.5 
 
TREE PROGRAM:  The City’s Land Development Code and Tree Bank policy permit the applicant to make 
a contribution to the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining deficient tree inches at $10.00 per inch. The 
total amount required to be paid into the Tree Bank will be ($1700) dollars. 

 

SIGNS:  On November 14, 2016, Planning Commission approved two (2) sign variance request to allow the 

following: 1) A ten (10) feet high monument sign with a maximum copy area of 80 square feet located at the 

southwest corner of the property; 2) A second sign with a maximum height of six (6) feet and a maximum 

copy are of thirty (30) square feet.  
58



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
TRACTOR SUPPLY APOPKA – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
December 21, 2016 - City Council (7:00 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the Final Development Plan to be consistent with the approved 
Preliminary Development Plan and Land Development Code, recommending approval of the Tractor Supply 
Apopka - Final Development Plan subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 

Approve the Tractor Supply-Apopka Final Development Plan and issue a final development order, subject to 

the findings of this staff report. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

59



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
TRACTOR SUPPLY APOPKA – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Tractor Supply Apopka - Final Development Plan 
Owner:   Michael L. Hart, Margie A. Hart and Apopka Regional Properties, LLP. 

Applicant:  Hanlex First Street, LLC 

Engineer:  Hanlex Civil, LLC. c/o Nathan Bullard, MBA P.E. 

Architect:  Rabits and Romano Architecture 
Parcel I.D. No’s:    09-21-28-0196-10-040, 09-21-28-0196-10-064 and 09-21-28-0196-10-122 
Location:  180 West 1st Street 
Total Acres:   3.90 +/- Acres  
 
   

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
TRACTOR SUPPLY APOPKA – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 
Application:  Tractor Supply Apopka - Final Development Plan 
Owner:   Michael L. Hart, Margie A. Hart and Apopka Regional Properties, LLP. 

Applicant:  Hanlex First Street, LLC 

Engineer:  Hanlex Civil, LLC. c/o Nathan Bullard, MBA P.E. 

Architect:  Rabits and Romano Architecture 
Parcel I.D. No’s:    09-21-28-0196-10-040, 09-21-28-0196-10-064 and 09-21-28-0196-10-122 
Location:  180 West 1st Street 

Total Acres:   3.90 +/- Acres    
 
 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 
 

 
  

61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2499 – Second Reading – Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative   Kyle 
Wilkes 

  

69



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    State Agencies Letters 

    Ordinance No. 2499 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2499 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LARGE SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY 

 

REQUEST: SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2499 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - 
LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT –  JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY, FROM 
“COUNTY” RURAL (0-1 DU/10 AC) TO “CITY” RURAL SETTLEMENT (0-1 DU/5 AC); 
(PARCEL ID NUMBERS 24-20-27-0000-00-056 & 24-20-27-0000-00-112) 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Jack & Joyce Cravey 

 

LOCATION: West of Phils Lane, east of Golden Gem Road (3815 Phils Ln. and 3827 Hideaway 

Road) 

 

EXISTING USE:  Manufactured home 

 

CURRENT ZONING:   “City” A-1 (ZIP) 

 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family residence 

 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” AG (Agriculture) (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being 

processed along with a request to change the zoning classification from “County” 
A-1 (ZIP) to “City”  AG (Agriculture). 

 

TRACT SIZE:    15.04 +/- acres  

 

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 

DEVELOPMENT:   EXISTING: 1 Unit / PROPOSED: 3 Units 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 

70



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on May 4, 2016 
through Ordinance 2495. The applicant requests a future land use designation of Rural Settlement (0-1du/5 ac).  
The request is compatible with surrounding future land use designations and adjacent uses.  As a “Large-Scale” 
Future Land use Amendment (i.e., ten or more acres), this application was transferred to State agencies for 
consistency review with State policies.  A notice dated August 5, 2016, from the Department of Economic 
Opportunity found that no comment related to important state resources and facilities within the Department’s 
authorized scope of review that will be adversely impacted by the amendment if adopted. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is compatible with the 
character of the surrounding area, which is predominantly rural in nature and has both agricultural and single-
family residential uses.  The Wekiva Parkway, which is currently under construction, abuts the east boundary of 
the subject site.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   Planning 
& Zoning staff determines that the policies below support a Rural Settlement FLUM designation at the subject 
site:  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.s This land use designation to apply within that area defined as the “Northern Area” in the Joint 
Planning Area Agreement between the City of Apopka and Orange County adopted on October 26, 
2004…The district is designed to facilitate single-family dwelling units and associated infrastructure 
which maximize the preservation of open space and promote the clustering of developments to both 
preserve and enhance the natural environment.  This land use designation shall also include an agricultural 
component.” 
 
The applicant’s intent to use the property for a single-family home is consistent with the intent of this 
Future Land Use Element policy.  The proposed use and future land use designation is compatible with 
the surrounding land uses and, therefore, the proposed future land use amendment is consistent with Policy 
3.1.s. 
 

2. Policy 3.2 Development and redevelopment shall be integrated with the adjacent land uses through: (1) 
the creation of like uses; or (2) creation of complementary uses; or (3) mitigation of adverse impacts. 
 
The proposed use for the subject property for single-family residential within the Rural Settlement future 
land use designation is compatible with the land uses and general character of the surrounding area.  The 
future land use designation of surrounding properties predominantly is “City” Rural Settlement or 
“County” Rural, making the requested future land use change is consistent with Policy 3.2. 

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:    The request for a future land use designation of Rural Settlement will result 
in a number of potential units that will be considered de minimus; therefore, school capacity determination is not 
required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The City 
properly notified Orange County on May 13, 2016. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
July 6, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading & Adoption 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
May 27, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading & Public Notice ¼ Page Ad w/Map 

71



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use from 

“County” Rural (0-1du/10 ac) to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 AC) for the property owned by Jack & Joyce 

Cravey, subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 14, 2016, recommended approval (5-0) of the change in Future 

Land Use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) for the property owned 

by Jack & Joyce Cravey, subject to the information and findings in the staff report; and transmittal to the Florida 

Department of Economic Opportunity. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on July 6, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2499; and 

authorized transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2499. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

72



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0-1 du/10) A-1 Limited Access R-O-W (SR 429) 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-2 Limited Access R-O-W (SR 429) 

South (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-2 Vacant 

West (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) AG Vacant 

 

The properties have access to local roadways (Phils Lane and Hideaway Road). 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 

 

The subject properties are located within an area with land uses that permit both residential and agricultural uses, 

which makes the request for a Rural Settlement future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan policies listed above, as well as the general future land use character of the surrounding area. 

 

Property to the west has a future land use designation of Rural Settlement and the other surrounding “county” 

future land use designations are Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) with single-family and agricultural uses.   

 

The proposed “City” Rural Settlement future land use designation is consistent with the general future land use 

character of the surrounding area.  

 

 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 

October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the JPA.   Orange County 

government has been notified of the proposed FLUM amendment and has not objected.  

 

 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from Phils and Hideaway Lanes, which connect to Ponkan Road 

to the south. 

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 

mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 

the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 

Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

73



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
Protection shows that there are  karst features on this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the Property is for a manufactured home.  
The dominant soil, Candler Fine Sand, has a 5-12 percent slope. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: These properties were 
annexed into the City on May 4, 2016 via Ordinance 2495. Based on the adoption of the JPA, the size of the 
property, and the proposed land use change, the amendment will increase the population if developed. 
  
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 2 persons 
PROPOSED: 3 x 2.659 p/h = 8 persons  
 
 Housing Needs: This proposed Future Land Use Designation of “Rural” will at most have a net increase 
of two residential units, placing a small or deminimus impact on the City’s population. 
  
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required for 
developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary Development 
Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and submit a habitat 
management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  81  GPCD;   81 GPD 
 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  588 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  177 GPCD;  
177 GPD 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:   210 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  630 GPD 
 74



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
4. Capacity available: Yes 

 
5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPCD 

 
6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPCD 

 
7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes   

 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  8 lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  32 lbs./person/day 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
 

 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None  
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 
 
 Recreation 
 

75



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 
2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.006 AC 

 
3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.024 AC 

 
4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None.     
 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

76



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 
 

Jack & Joyce Cravey 
15.04 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural (0 – 1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 ac)  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
To: “City” AG 

Parcel ID #s:   24-20-27-0000-00-056 & 24-20-27-0000-00-112 
 

VICINITY MAP  

 
 

 

 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

77



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
  

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

78



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 
 

  

79



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
80



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2499 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (0-1 

DU/10 AC) TO “CITY” RURAL SETTLEMENT (0-1 DU/5 AC) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF PHILS 

LANE AND EAST OF GOLDEN GEM ROAD, COMPRISING 15.04 ACRES, 

MORE OR LESS AND OWNED JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY; PROVIDING 

FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2496; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, relative 

to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Future Land Use Map is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety by Exhibit “A” 

of this Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon issuance 

by the Department of Community Affairs or the Administration Commission, as may be applicable, 

a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with Chapter 163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance.  

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute. 

91



ORDINANCE NO. 2499 

PAGE 2 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

____ day of _____________, 2016. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: July 6, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                                                       

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: May 27, 2016 

  

92



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Jack & Joyce Cravey 
Property Owner 
15.04 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural (0 – 1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 ac)  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
To: “City” AG 

Parcel ID #s:   24-20-27-0000-00-056 & 24-20-27-0000-00-112 

 

93



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2510 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 74 “Business Tax Receipts” – Legislative James 
Hitt 

  

94



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2510 

X OTHER: Ordinance    

 
 
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2510 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

  

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2510 – TO ALLOW 
ADMINISTRATIVEE APPROVAL OF VEHICLE FOR HIRE 
PERMITS.  

SUMMARY:  
 
Currently, the process to review a Vehicle for Hire Permit application requires a public hearing 
before the City Council to make a determination of approval, approval with conditions, or denial.  
Review by City Council has produced little or no public benefit for having the extended review 
process. These processes are costly and time consuming for the City as well as permit applicants. 
Staff is requesting that Chapter 74, Article IV, Section 74-104 pertaining To “Vehicles for Hire” 
be amended by removing language indicating that City Council approval is required for Vehicle 
for Hire permits. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) – Postponed to October 5, 2016 
October 5, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to November 2, 2016 
November 2, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to December 7, 2016 
December 7, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to December 21, 2016 
December 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 19, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer   Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners    HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator   IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  

95



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CHAPTER 74 – BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT 
PAGE 2 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of 
Apopka, Code of Ordinances, amending Chapter 74, Article IV, Section 74-104, pertaining To 
“Vehicles for Hire” by removing language indicating that City Council approval is required for 
drivers. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 21, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of 
Ordinance No. 2510 due to concerns expressed by the transportation network company, Lyft, and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on October 5, 2016. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on October 5, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance 
No. 2510; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on November 2, 2016 to allow the 
new Community Development Director time to acquaint himself with the amendment. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 2, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of 
Ordinance No. 2510; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 7, 2016. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of 
Ordinance No. 2510; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2510 
 
Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and 

its findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

96



ORDINANCE NO. 2510 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 74-104 

OF THE CITY OF APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES 

PERTAINING TO “VEHICLES FOR HIRE” BY REMOVING 

LANGUAGE INDICATING THAT CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVAL IS REQUIRED FOR DRIVERS; AND 

PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in 

the best interest of the City to remove requirements for City Council approval of drivers for 

“vehicles for hire.” 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING:  Underlined words constitute additions to the City of 

Apopka Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks 

(***) indicate an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Section 74-104 of the City of Apopka Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended as follows:  

 

Sec. 74-104. - Schedule. 

There is hereby assessed, levied and imposed upon every business, trade, occupation and 

profession carried on within the city an annual business tax in the following amounts:  

*** 

Vehicle for hire. (with driver) Must comply with requirements of City Code Chapter 86.  

(City council approval required)  

(1) 1 to 6 passengers, first vehicle .....61.00  

(2) 7+ passengers, first vehicle .....61.00  

(3) Each additional vehicle .....24.00  

*** 

97



ORDINANGE NO. 2510 

PAGE 2 

 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION.  It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions 

of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Apopka; and the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the 

Code, and Sections of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered 

and the word “ordinance" may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which 

do not affect the intent may be authorized by the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing 

a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of 

this ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, 

administrative agency, or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, 

subsection, sentences, clauses, or phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, 

provisions, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and 

be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

December 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 19, 2016 

       September 9, 2016 

98



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2511 – Second Reading - Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86 “Vehicles for Hire.” – Legislative   James 
Hitt 

  

99



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2511 

X OTHER:  Ordinance    TNC Comments 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2511 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES.  
  
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2511 – UPDATING THE VEHICLE FOR 

HIRE REQUIREMENS. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

The current process for review and approval of a Vehicle for Hire Permit (VHP) is to have an applicant submit the 

appropriate application and back up documentation, submit for a criminal background check, schedule to have the 

application reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) and finally scheduled for review by the City Council.  

This process has caused difficulties and angst among the applicants which is inevitably directed toward administrative staff. 

This has increased with the popularity of Transportation Network Application companies such as Uber and Lyft.  A review 

of the VHP process revealed that there were greater efficiencies that could be achieved if the process were administratively 

based.  This would allow transportation service providers to receive their permits in approximately one week versus the 

current process which can take 1-2 months dependent upon the timing of the application submittal as it relates to DRC and 

City Council schedules. 
 
Initially it was determined that a simple ordinance revision would be required to remove the DRC and City Council from 
the process.  However as staff and the City Attorney reviewed the Chapter 86 of the Code of Ordinances it became evident 
that the code was so outdated that a complete revision was necessary.  This is primarily based upon the fact that when the 
code was written, the only option available to hire a vehicle was through a taxi company. This has changed drastically 
based upon the advent of digitally based companies. 
 
The City Attorney conducted a preliminary review of the current requirements to identify possible amendments to address 
the emerging technologies and practices in the provision of passenger transportation services.  Based on this preliminary 
review, it was determined that the current chapter be repealed and replaced it in its entirety. 
 
Many of the vehicle for hire permitting requirements relate directly to ensuring public safety, including a satisfactory 
criminal background check, and proof of insurance.  Such requirements are important for any type of vehicle for hire 
service, whether it is a traditional taxicab company or a network of independent contractors providing transportation 
services through a transportation network company. 
 
The proposed ordinance is based upon models in Orlando and Tallahassee which have proven successful. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) – Postponed to October 5, 2016 
October 5, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to November 2, 2016 
November 2, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to December 7, 2016 
December 7, 2016 - City Council 2nd Reading (1:30 pm) – Postponed to December 21, 2016 
December 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 100



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CHAPTER 86 – VEHICLE FOR HIRE 
PAGE 2 

 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 19, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

N/A 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, Code 

of Ordinances, amending the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86 – Vehicle for Hire - vacating 

and deleting the provisions of chapter 86 of the city code as currently written, adopting new provisions in said 

chapter amending the permitting and regulation of taxicabs and creating regulations for transportation services 

and transportation network application companies and operators. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on September 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2511 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 21, 2016. 

 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 21, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 
2511 due to concerns expressed by the transportation network company, Lyft, and held it over for Second 
Reading and Adoption on October 5, 2016. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on October 5, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2511; 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on November 2, 2016 to allow the new Community 
Development Director time to acquaint himself with the amendment. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 2, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 
2511; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 7, 2016 to allow the new Community 
Development Director to coordinate with the City Attorney to address the transportation network companies 
concerns. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 2, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 
2511; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 7, 2016. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, postponed the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2511; 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2511. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings 

are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

101



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
VACATING AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 
OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY 
WRITTEN, ADOPTING NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER 
AMENDING THE PERMITTING AND REGULATION OF 
TAXICABS AND CREATING REGULATIONS FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND OPERATORS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in the best 
interest of the City to update its regulations for vehicles for hire in recognition of changes and advances 
in modern business models of private automobile transportation. 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING: Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka 
Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) indicate 
an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE    CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. The provisions of CHAPTER 86, VEHICLES FOR HIRE, shall be vacated and 

deleted in its entirety, and the following shall be adopted in their place. The provisions to be vacated and 
deleted are attached as Exhibit “A.” 

 

Chapter 86 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 86-1. - Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Company means any person, association, corporation or other organization which operates or 
intends to engage in the business of operating vehicles for hire or operate as a TNC. 

Conviction means the conviction by a court including an adjudication of guilt on a plea of guilty or 
nolo contendere or the forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime. 

Digital platform means any online or smartphone enabled application that allows passengers to 
request transportation network vehicle services. 

Digital credential means the permission or access given to a driver to operate on a company's digital 
platform. 

Driver means an individual permitted to drive a vehicle for hire. 

Fees mean nonrefundable payments required in this chapter. 

Limousine means a specialized vehicle not equipped with a taximeter and for hire only by 
prearrangement at a rate charged per hour, or fixed in advance, and provided also that each such vehicle 
for hire is: (1) chauffeured, (2) a luxury class passenger vehicle built or modified for the purpose of a 
limousine as defined and recognized by the limousine industry; and (3) operated on a reserved, hourly  

  

102



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 
PAGE 2 of 16 

 
basis for a continuous period. A vehicle which is held out to be a limousine or which has an appearance 
deceptively similar to a limousine is a limousine for the purposes of this chapter. 

Narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and central nervous system stimulants. The term 
"narcotic drugs" as used in this chapter shall mean coca leaves, opium, cannabis, marijuana, isonipecaine 
and every synthetic substance known to have narcotic action. The term "barbituric acid derivative" means 
each of the salts and derivatives of barbituric acid, also known as malonyl urea, and derivatives, 
compounds, mixtures or preparations thereof. "Barbiturate" or "barbiturates" shall include all hypnotic 
or somnifacient drugs, whether or not derivatives of barbituric acids. The term "central nervous system 
stimulants" means amphetamine and desocyephedrine, and any derivative, compounds, mixture or 
preparation thereof. 

Permit means the authority granted to companies to operate, or persons who qualify to drive, 
vehicles for hire. 

Revocation means the rescinding of a permit. A person or entity whose permit is revoked shall not 
be entitled to reinstatement or an opportunity to reapply for such permit for a period of two years except 
as provided in subsection 86-61(5). 

Shuttle bus means a vehicle with a capacity of at least eight persons, including the driver, that is 
operated on a fixed route, or owner and operated directly by a motel or hotel and limited to registered 
guests thereof. 

Suspension means the temporary rescinding of a permit or license. The suspension may be for a time 
certain or indefinite pending compliance with the terms of this chapter. 

Taxicab means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, including the driver, 
equipped with a taximeter operated under a company and vehicle permit required by this article, which 
is routed under the direction of the person hiring the vehicle. 

Taximeter means an instrument or device attached to a vehicle and designed to measure 
mechanically or electronically the distance traveled by such vehicle, to record the times such vehicle 
travels or is in waiting, and to indicate the fare to be obtained. 

Transportation service means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, 
including the driver, which is not equipped with a taximeter, which charges passengers a fare generally 
based on a flat fee, and does not operate over a fixed or defined route but routed under the direction of 
the person hiring the vehicle. 

Transportation network application company ("TNC company") means any company operating in 
the city that uses a digital network or software application to connect a passenger to transportation 
network services provided by a transportation network operator. 

Transportation network operator means any driver or operator who operates a personal vehicle that 
utilizes any digital platform to arrange transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the 
passenger and that is in connection with a digital platform controlled by a TNC company. 

Transportation network service means the provision of transportation by a transportation network 
operator to a rider, beginning when the transportation network operator accepts a ride requested through 
a digital platform controlled by a TNC company, continuing while the transportation network operator 
transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last requesting rider departs from the personal vehicle. 

Use of narcotic drugs. The word "use" as employed in this chapter in relation to the drugs described 
in this chapter shall apply to any person who uses one or more of the narcotic drugs or barbituric acid 
derivatives or central nervous system stimulants as defined this section to any extent, with or without 
medical need or authority or prescription. 

Vehicle for hire means any vehicle, whether owned by the driver or company, that is operated by a 
taxicab driver, transportation service driver, transportation network operator, any other motor    vehicle 

103



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 3 of 16 

 
with driver transporting passengers for a fare, fee, or other charge in the city. The term vehicle for hire, 
by definition, excludes: 

(1) School, church, college or university buses; 

(2) Sightseeing cars and buses; 

(3) Ambulances; 

(4) Funeral home vehicles; 

(5) Interstate buses; 

(6) Limousines; 

(7) Shuttle buses. 

Vehicle for hire administrator means the City Administrator or his/her designee. 

ARTICLE II. - COMPANY PERMIT 

Sec. 86-31. - Application; contents. 

(a) No taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company shall operate or engage in the 
business of operating vehicles for hire or operating a TNC within the city without having first 
obtained a company permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee. An application shall 
be submitted on forms furnished by the vehicles for hire administrator or designee containing 
appropriate information which is reasonably related to the business of operating vehicles for hire. 

(b) In order to secure or renew a company permit, the company applicant shall file an application with 
the vehicles for hire administrator or designee, and such application shall be verified under oath and 
shall furnish the following information: 

(1) The name and address of the company. If the company is a corporation or partnership, the name 
and address of all officers, shareholders, partners or any principals or owners with an interest 
greater than twenty percent of the company must be listed. 

(2) The color scheme and insignia to be used to designate the vehicles of any taxicab company. 

(3) No company permit shall be granted to a taxicab company operating less than five vehicles. 
The vehicles must be currently operating, licensed, and inspected as required by this chapter. 
Each vehicle must conform to the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
maximum passenger standards allowed for the vehicle to operate. 

(4) Proof of proper amount of insurance coverage as provided in section 86-93, with the insurance 
coverage being filed with vehicle for hire administrator and approved by the City. 

(5) Such other information as the vehicle for hire administrator may require. 

(c) Payment of an annual company permit fee of $250.00. 

Sec. 86-32. - Maintaining a company permit. 

(a) In order to maintain a company permit to operate or engage in the business of operating vehicles for 
hire or operating a TNC, the company must: 

(1) Obtain and hold a current business tax receipt from the city as required by chapter 74, if 
applicable. 

(2) Maintain a telephone number that is monitored 24 hours a day for emergency contact by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee or law enforcement, and an e-mail address for citizen 
complaints or concerns. 

104



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 4 of 16 

 
(3) Maintain the name, home address, and telephone number of each driver affiliated with the 

company. 

(4) Maintain a log listing the year, make, model, license plate number of all vehicles in the 
company's fleet or that operate on a company's platform. 

(5) Maintain proper amount of insurance as provided in section 86-93. 

(6) Maintain records available for inspection, upon request by the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, pursuant to a complaint received or if the vehicle for hire administrator has a 
reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this chapter. 
The records shall include, but not be limited to, records pertaining to permitted/certified drivers, 
vehicle inspection records, daily logs, and that the maximum rate charged in compliance with 
section 86-95. Unless otherwise agreed to by the company and the vehicle for hire 
administrator, such records shall be made available for inspection to the vehicle for hire 
administrator at a permit holder's place of business or a mutually agreed location in the city. 

(7) Each company shall implement a zero-tolerance policy on the use of drugs or alcohol applicable 
to all drivers, and provide notice of the policy to all company drivers and to the public through 
its website, if applicable. In addition, the company shall provide notice to the public on the 
procedure for reporting a driver the passenger reasonably suspects was under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol during the course of the ride. The company shall cooperate with the vehicle 
for hire administrator or designee during the pendency of the investigation pursuant to 
subsection 86-63(b)(3). 

(8) The vehicle for hire administrator or police chief is authorized to conduct annual audits of any 
company authorized to operate under this chapter. The company shall provide to the vehicle for 
hire administrator, on request, up to 250 unique identification numbers, each of which has been 
assigned to an individual driver affiliated with the company. The vehicle for hire administrator 
may send to the company a list of up to ten driver identification numbers and request copies of 
records held by the company for those ten drivers. Within five business days of receiving a 
request seeking records, the company shall make available to the vehicle for hire administrator 
at a company's place of business or a mutually agreed setting in the city, records to verify that 
the company has properly screened drivers in accordance with section 86-61; provided, that the 
company may redact any records it provides access to in order to protect the privacy and 
identifying information of the driver. 

Sec. 86-33. - Revocation or suspension of a company permit; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of company permit; grounds. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined in 
subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the authority 
to revoke or suspend any company permit which has been granted or which may hereinafter be 
granted by the city. Prior to suspension or revocation, the company shall be served notice by certified 
mail or hand delivery of the proposed action to be taken and shall have an opportunity to present to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee evidence as to why the company permit should not be 
revoked or suspended. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a company permit 
shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the company to maintain any of the general qualifications applicable to the initial 
granting of the company permit as set forth in section 86-31 or maintaining a company permit 
as set forth in section 86-32. 

(2) Obtaining a company permit by providing false information. 

105



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 5 of 16 

 
(3) Conviction by a court of competent jurisdiction of any shareholder, officer, partner, member, 

principal or owner of any corporation, partnership, firm or association holding a five percent 
interest or more in the entity, of any of the following: criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, 
aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd 
and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to 
commit any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system 
stimulants if such violation or violations are related to operation of the company, or violation 
of any ordinance of the city governing the conduct of a company. 

(4) Allowing any person to operate a company's designated vehicle for hire, or operate on the 
company's digital platform, without an active driver permit or credential, or when said person's 
permit or credential has been suspended or revoked because of a positive drug test pursuant to 
section 86-63. 

(c) Right of appeal. Any company whose permit is revoked or suspended by the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee may appeal such decision to the City Council. Such appeal shall be taken 
by filing written notice thereof, in duplicate, with the city administrator's office within five days 
after the decision of the vehicles for hire administrator or designee. The notice of the appeal shall 
contain the grounds for the appeal and shall contain information that either the finding is contrary 
to the law or is not supported by competent substantial evidence. The vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall forthwith transmit copies of the appeal to the City Council along with all papers 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is based. The filing of a notice of appeal 
will not delay the effectiveness of any suspension or revocation. 

ARTICLE III. - VEHICLE FOR HIRE DRIVERS 

Sec. 86-60. - Prohibition against unauthorized operation. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate on behalf of a taxicab company, transportation 
service, or other vehicle for hire for the transportation of passengers within the city, or on a TNC's 
digital platform, or to cause or permit any other person to drive or operate a vehicle for hire: 

(1) Without first obtaining a written permit for the operation of a motor vehicle for hire from the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee; 

(2) Without having been certified to operate a motor vehicle for hire on behalf of a company or on 
the company's digital platform; or 

(3) When the company permit has previously been revoked pursuant to section 86-33. 

(b) Any person found to have violated this section shall be punished by the following: 

(1) A fine $150.00 for the first citation; 

(2) A fine of $250.00 for the second citation; and 

(3) A fine of $500.00 for the third or subsequent citation. 

Sec. 86-61. - Application for driver's permit. 

(a) In order to secure a driver permit or to obtain certification from a company, an applicant must: 

(1) Be at least 18 years of age; 

(2) Possess a valid state driver's license; 

(3) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have been convicted of: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs; or 

106



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 6 of 16 

 
b. Violation of any ordinance or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 

operation of a motor vehicle. 

(4) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have more than three moving 
violations; 

(5) Not have been convicted within the seven years previous to the date of application for the 
violation of any of the following criminal offenses of the state or any other state or of the United 
States: aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, lewd and 
lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit 
any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the offenses listed in this subsection, or 
been convicted within the last seven years of any felony in the commission of which a motor 
vehicle was used, perjury or false swearing in making any statement under oath in connection 
with application for a driver's permit, any felony involving theft, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivative and/or central nervous system 
stimulants. Applicants who have been convicted or served any time, probation, or parole for a 
criminal offense of homicide, rape, sexual battery, or child molestation must have their 
complete criminal history reviewed and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator; 

(6) Be able to communicate in the English language. 

(b) An applicant may apply for a permit or credential by completing a form provided by the vehicle for 
hire administrator establishing that the applicant meets the requirements of subsection. 

(c) Upon approval by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or certification by the taxicab 
company, transportation service, or TNC company, the driver shall be issued: 

(1) A permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee; or 

(2) Credentials from the taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company, which may be 
digital credentials, indicating that the driver was certified by the company, and the credential 
shall include the following information: 

a. The name or logo of the company; 

b. The name of the driver; 

c. The license plate number associated with the vehicle that the driver has been authorized to 
use. 

(3) The driver shall display the permit or credential in a manner that it is visible to the passengers 
of the vehicle while the vehicle is operating, or make available at a minimum the driver's first 
name, photograph, and make, model, and license plate number to the passenger through the 
company's digital platform. The driver shall present the permit or credential upon request to a 
law enforcement officer, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or designated airport 
personnel upon request. If the driver maintains a digital credential, upon a traffic stop, a driver 
shall provide law enforcement with access to a device containing the information required to 
be maintained as part of the driver's digital credential and an electronic record sufficient to 
establish that the trip in question was prearranged through a digital platform. 

(d) An applicant must pay an annual driver application fee of $100.00. 

Sec. 86-62. - Maintaining driver's permit. 

In order to maintain a valid permit or credential to drive a taxicab, transportation service, or other 
vehicle for hire, a driver must: 

(1) Wear proper dress while operating a vehicle for hire. 

(2) Maintain a neat appearance. 

107



  

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 7 of 16 
 

(3) Not smoke while carrying passengers. 

(4) Maintain a log upon which are recorded all trips made each day, showing time and place of 
origin and destination of each trip and amount of fare. Such logs must be maintained by the 
company or the vehicle owner, if not maintained by the driver, and shall be made available to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for a compliance inquiry if the administrator has 
a reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this 
chapter. 

(5) Renew his driver's permit or credential during the month of the driver's permit or credential 
expiration date. 

(6) Wear a seatbelt at all times while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation 
network services. 

Sec. 86-63. - Revocation or suspension of driver's permits; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of driver's permits or credential. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined 
in subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the 
authority to revoke or suspend any driver's permit or credential which has been issued or which may 
hereinafter be issued by the city. Before a driver's permit or credential shall be denied, suspended 
or revoked, notice of intention thereof shall be served upon the driver either by registered mail or 
personal service; however, such notice shall not be necessary for a denial of an original permit or 
credential. However, any such applicant or driver shall be given an opportunity to be heard by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a driver's permit or 
credential shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the driver to maintain any and all of the general qualifications as applicable to 
the initial issuance of a permit as set forth in section 86-61; 

(2) Obtaining a permit or credential by providing false information; 

(3) Violation by a driver of any of the following offenses: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs. A driver shall be required 
to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee: 

b. Where reasonable suspicion exists that a driver is abusing alcohol or misusing prescription 
drugs or controlled substances; or 

c. Where a driver has been involved in a crash with serious injury or serious property 
damage while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation network services. 
"Serious injury" is defined as a physical condition that creates a substantial risk of death, 
serious personal disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the function of any 
bodily member or organ. "Serious property damage" is defined as one or more of the 
motor vehicles involved in the crash is "totaled", or one or more of the vehicles sustains 
significant disabling damage to public and/or private property which equals or exceeds an 
apparent damage of $5,000.00 or more as estimated by the law enforcement officer who 
conducts the investigation at the scene of the traffic crash; or 

d. Refusing or failing to submit to a drug test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall be due cause for revocation of the driver's permit or credential with no 
reapplication for one year. Failing a drug or alcohol test shall be due cause for revocation 
of the driver's permit or credential with no reapplication for one year. 

e. Criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, 
kidnapping,  robbery,  child  molestation,  lewd  and  lascivious  acts,  armed  trespassing, 

108



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 8 of 16 
carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit any of the above, criminal 
attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or distribution of narcotic drugs, 
barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system stimulants, violation of any 
ordinance of the city governing the conduct of drivers of a vehicle for hire. 

(4) Charging a fare contrary to any fares established and approved by the city commission pursuant 
to section 86-95; 

(5) Violation of any ordinances or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 
operation of a taxicab, transportation service, TNC company, or other vehicle for hire; 

(6) Whenever it shall appear that a driver has disorders characterized by lapses of consciousness or 
other mental or physical disabilities affecting his or her ability to drive safely; 

(7) Accumulating nine or more points within a six-month period as outlined in F.S. § 322.27(3)d. 

(8) Violating the requirements of section 86-96. 

Sec. 86-64. - Duration of driver permit. 

Each driver permit or credential issued pursuant to section 86-61 above shall be valid for one year 
from the date of issuance. 

ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

Sec. 86-91. - Identifying signs, monograms and insignias. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

Each taxicab shall be readily identifiable as a taxicab and shall bear on the outside of each rear or 
front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the person or corporation to 
whom the franchise is issued. Each such taxicab shall also be numbered consecutively, with such 
numbers being placed conspicuously on each vehicle, with such numerals being not less than four 
and one-half inches nor more than six inches in height. 

(b) Transportation services. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a transportation service shall be readily identifiable as a transportation 
service and shall bear on the outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches 
in height, the name of the person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by. 

(2) No transportation service shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself as a "taxi" or "cab" 
or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab. 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company/transportation network operator. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a TNC company or transportation network operator shall display a 
consistent signage or emblem on the transportation network operator’s personal vehicle at all 
times while the transportation network operator is active on the TNC company’s network.  The 
signage or emblem shall be sufficiently large or color-contrasted to be readable during daylight 
hours from a distance of 50 feet, reflective, illuminated, or otherwise visible in darkness, and 
capable of sufficiently identifying a personal vehicle as being associated with the TNC 
company. 

(2) No transportation network operator vehicle shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself 
as a "taxi" or "cab" or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab, or otherwise give the 
impression that the operator is available to solicit passengers other than through the digital 
platform. 

(3) No transportation network operator vehicle shall place any type or form of light device or other 
device on the roof, commonly known as a top light or top hat, whether or not permanently or 
temporarily affixed to the vehicle, or have within the interior of the vehicle. 

109



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 9 of 16 

 

Sec. 86-92. - Taximeter. 

(a) All taxicabs operated under the authority of this chapter shall be equipped with taximeters fastened 
in a manner so that the face thereof shall be visible and readable to passengers at all times both day 
and night. The face of the taximeter shall be set so that it will register and compute on a mileage 
basis while such taxicab is moving and on a time basis while such taxicab is standing and while the 
service is being rendered the fare to be charged. Such taximeter shall be operated mechanically by 
a mechanism of standard design and construction, driven either from the transmission or from one 
of the front wheels by a flexible and permanently attached driving mechanism. 

(b) No vehicle for hire other than a taxicab is authorized to install or be equipped with a taximeter. 

Sec. 86-93. - Liability insurance required. 

No vehicle for hire shall be placed in service unless such vehicle is in compliance with Florida law 
for liability insurance purposes. Proof of such insurance coverage, which may be provided on a blanket 
basis, shall be filed annually with and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for the 
carrying of passengers. 

Sec. 86-94. - Seat belts required. 

All vehicles for hire covered by this chapter shall be equipped with operational seat belts for each 
passenger. 

Sec. 86-95. - Authority of city commission to establish rates and charges; displaying rate cards. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

(1) The city commission may by ordinance establish maximum rates and charges for the 
transportation of persons and their baggage within the corporate limits of the city and suburban 
territory adjacent thereto. Any ordinance establishing rates as provided by this section shall 
become effective 24 hours after its adoption. 

(2) Every taxicab operating under this chapter shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a 
schedule of rates for the transportation of person within the corporate limits of the city, and no 
charges shall be made in excess of the rates so posted. 

(3) There is hereby established a schedule of the maximum rates which can be charged by all 
taxicab drivers operating taxicabs within the city. A taximeter may be set so that it will register 
and compute on a mileage or other basis at less than the maximum rates set forth in this section. 

(b) Transportation service. 

(1) All fares as agreed to between any transportation service operator and any passenger must be 
agreed upon prior to leaving the point of origin. No transportation service operator may increase 
the agreed upon fare after leaving the point of origin. 

(2) No transportation service shall be authorized to charge for wait time, or to charge any other 
rates or fees except for mileage. 

(3) Every transportation service vehicle shall have cards displayed visibly from the outside of the 
vehicle on the passenger side and on the inside of the right rear window at the eye level of a 
seated passenger that state the following: "RATE OF TRANSPORT IS BY FLAT FEE ONLY". 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company or transportation network operator. 

(1) All TNC companies shall disclose the fare calculation method, the applicable rates being 
charged, and the option for an estimated fare to a passenger before the passenger arranges or 
books a trip with the transportation network application company or transportation network 
operator. 

110



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 10 of 16 

 
(2) Upon completion of the trip, a TNC company shall transmit an electronic receipt to the 

passenger's e-mail or mobile application that lists the: origin and destination of the trip; the total 
time and distance of the trip; and a breakdown of the total fare paid, if any. 

Sec. 86-96. - Miscellaneous regulations and other penalties. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any driver or operator of a vehicle for hire to drive or operate or be on duty 
or on call for the operation of a vehicle for hire for more than 12 hours within any 24-hour period. 

(b) A driver shall take the most direct route to a passenger's destination unless otherwise authorized or 
directed by the passenger. 

(c) No driver shall refuse to accept a passenger unless the passenger is obviously disorderly, dangerous, 
or otherwise a threat to the safety or welfare of the driver. 

(d) It shall be unlawful for the driver operating in the city to permit any person to accompany or use 
such vehicle for hire for the purpose of prostitution, or to direct, take or transport any other person 
with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the purpose of such directing, taking or 
transporting is for the purpose of prostitution. 

(e) No vehicle for hire shall be permitted to carry nonpaying passengers while transporting a paying 
passenger or passengers except for the purpose of driver training. 

(f) No vehicle for hire shall solicit or carry a paying passenger while in the process of carrying another 
paying passenger except when requested to do so by the latter passenger. 

(g) Transportation network operators shall exclusively accept passengers booked through a 
transportation network company's digital platform, and shall not solicit or accept street-hails. 

(h) No TNC company may provide personal information about a passenger to a transportation network 
operator, including a passenger's full name, e-mail address, or telephone number. 

Sec. 86-97. - Enforcement. 

The city police department and the vehicles for hire administrator shall be authorized to enforce the 
regulations contained in this chapter, including the promulgation of rules consistent with this chapter 
and the setting of fees. 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION. It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and 

the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections 

of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" 

may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by 

the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the 

City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 

ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, 

or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses, or 

phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

111



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 11 of 16 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 

requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force 

and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

December 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 
 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 
 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 
 

 

 
 

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 
 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  August 9, 2016 

        September 19, 2016    

112



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 12 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Sec. 86-39. - Liability insurance. 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator, driver or chauffeur of any taxicab to drive or operate 

the taxicab or to permit the taxicab to be driven or operated upon the public streets, unless such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur shall have first procured and filed with the city clerk a liability 

insurance policy issued by a good and responsible surety company, which insurance company or 

surety company must have authority to do business as such in the state and must be acceptable to 

and approved by the city council. The amount of liability insurance or surety bond for each taxicab 

shall be the minimum required by the state for liability insurance, or, if liability insurance is not 

required by state law, the minimum financial responsibility requirements of the Financial 

Responsibility Law, F.S. ch. 324. 

(b) Such policy of insurance or surety bond may be in the form of a separate policy or separate surety 

bond for each taxicab, or may be in the form of a fleet policy covering all taxicabs operated by such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur, in which latter event such policy of insurance or surety bond 

shall provide the same liability for each taxicab operated in service as specified in subsection (a) of 

this section. Every taxicab hired in service shall have conspicuously displayed therein or thereon 

some sign evidencing the fact that the provisions of this section have been complied with, with the 

form thereof to be prescribed by the chief of police. 

(c) No policy of insurance or surety bond as provided for in this section shall be cancelled until the 

expiration of five days after notice of intended cancellation thereof has been given in writing to the 

city clerk by registered mail or personal delivery of such notice, and a provision therefor shall be 

embodied in the policy or surety bond. 

Sec. 86-40. - Use of streets for transacting business. 
 

Except as provided in this article, no taxicab shall occupy space on the streets for the transaction of 

business other than the picking up of passengers. All places of business of taxicabs shall be maintained 

off the streets. 

Sec. 86-41. - Use of improper vehicles. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or drive, as a taxicab, in or upon any street, any motor- 

driven vehicle, unless the vehicle is a taxicab as defined in this article. 

Sec. 86-42. - Name of owner or operator to be displayed on vehicle. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any taxicab to be driven upon the streets unless the name of the person either 

owning or operating such taxicab, or the trade name under which such taxicab is operated, is 

conspicuously painted on such taxicab in letters not less than two inches in height. 

Sec. 86-43. - Meters. 
 

(a) All taxicabs shall be equipped with mechanical devices, commonly called taxicab meters, for 

registering the fare to be charged. 

113



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 13 of 16 

 

(b) Every meter in use shall be placed in such taxicabs at a location that will be plainly visible at all 

times to the occupants of such taxicabs. Between the hours of sunset and sunrise, the dial of the 

meter shall be illuminated whenever it is in use. 

(c) Whenever a taxicab is not in service, the meter shall show no fare and the flag shall be in the upright 

position. When a taxicab is in service, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be lowered and the 

meter shall be in the calculating position. 

(d) Upon the completion of service by a taxicab, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be raised and 

the meter shall be returned to the noncalculating position and its dials cleared. 

(e) It shall be unlawful for the operator or driver of any taxicab to operate the taxicab on the streets of 

the city with any occupant in such taxicab other than the driver when the flag or indicator on the 

taxicab meter is upright and in the noncalculating position, except when operating on an hourly or 

trip rate. 

(f) When the hourly rate or the special trip rate is used, an appropriate sign indicating that the cab is on 

a trip or hourly rate shall be exhibited. 

(g) It shall be the duty of the person owning and operating taxicabs to have the meter in good working 

condition and operating accurately as to the registration of mileage and fare. Such meters shall be 

sealed in a manner that will prevent any person from tampering with or changing the adjustment of 

the meter. It shall be unlawful for any person to tamper with or change the adjustment of a meter, 

except the owner operating the taxicab to which such meter is affixed, or a person duly designated 

by the owner, or a meter mechanic. 

(h) It shall be unlawful for any person owning and operating taxicabs with meters affixed thereto to 

permit the taxicabs to be operated on the streets of the city when such meters do not accurately 

register the mileage and the rate as set forth by the ordinances of the city. All meters shall be subject 

to inspection and test by any police officer at all times when cabs are not carrying passengers. 

Sec. 86-44. - Rates and charges. 
 

(a) Posting. Each taxicab shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a schedule of rates for the 

transportation of persons within the corporate limits of the city, and no charges shall be made in 

excess of the rates so posted. 

(b) Determination. All rate charges or fees for the use of taxicabs using meters shall be determined by 

a meter rate, hourly rate or special trip rate and by no other method. All charges are for the exclusive 

use of the taxicab, and shall apply regardless of the number of passengers transported. 

Sec. 86-45. - Fare receipts; right to demand payment of fare in advance. 
 

If demanded by the passenger, the driver in charge of a taxicab shall deliver to the person paying 

for the hiring of the taxicab, at the time of such payment, a receipt therefor in legible writing, containing 

the name of the owner and the city license or permit number, showing upon such receipt all items for 

which a charge is made, the total amount paid and the date of payment. Every driver of any such taxicab 

shall have the right to demand payment of the legal fare in advance, and may refuse employment unless 

so prepaid. 

Sec. 86-46. - Soliciting passengers near intersection. 

114



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 14 of 16 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person owning or operating one or more vehicles for hire in the city to 

operate such motor vehicles over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting patronage, 

picking up passengers or delivering passengers at any point within 100 feet of any intersecting street 

corner along such street. It is the purpose and intent of this section to prohibit such practice within 100 

feet in all directions from such intersections. Such distance in all cases shall be measured from the center 

of the intersection. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any taxicab 

or vehicle operated for hire from responding to any specific request for passage from any person seeking 

the services offered by such taxi or motor vehicle or from stopping at any point within the city for the 

purpose of delivering a passenger who has been picked up at any part of the city in a manner not 

prohibited by law. This section shall not apply to any buses or motor vehicles owned or operated by any 

bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city. 

Sec. 86-47. - Soliciting passengers by preceding or following scheduled bus. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person operating motor vehicles for hire in the city to operate such motor 

vehicle over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting the patronage of passengers by 

immediately preceding or following any duly scheduled bus or motor vehicle operated for such purpose 

by any bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city along the streets of the city. 

Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any duly licensed taxi 

from responding to any specific request for passage from any patron seeking the services offered by such 

duly licensed taxi. 

Sec. 86-48. - Smoking by driver. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any driver, operator or chauffeur of any taxicab to smoke while the taxicab 

is occupied by a passenger. 

Sec. 86-49. - Use for immoral purposes. 
 

It shall be unlawful for the driver of a taxicab to permit any person to accompany or use such taxicab 

for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or assignation, or to direct, take or transport, or to offer or agree 

to direct, take or transport, any other person, with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the 

purpose of such directing, taking or transporting is for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or 

assignation. 

Sec. 86-50. - Display of political advertisements. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person licensed by the city to operate or drive a taxicab upon any street 

within the city with a political ad displayed for anyone seeking public office at any time. 

DIVISION 2. - BUSINESS PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-66. - Required. 
 

It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated any taxicab business unless a permit for the 

operation thereof shall have been first issued by the city council in the manner provided in this division. 

Sec. 86-67. - Application and investigation. 
 

(a) An application for the permit required by this division shall be made in writing to the city council. 

Such application shall set forth the name, residence address, and address of place of business of the 

applicant and the kind, make and model of the vehicle to be used in the business. If the applicant is 

115



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 15 of 16 

 

a copartnership, the application shall give the nmes and residence addresses of the copartners. If the 

application is a corporation, the application shall set forth the name of the corporation and the 

residence address of its officers and board of directors. The application shall set forth the trade name, 

if any, under which the applicant does or proposes to do business. 

(b) Upon the filing of an application, the city clerk shall make an investigation, including any hearing 

deemed necessary, as to each application for a permit for the operation of taxicabs. In determining 

whether a permit shall be issued, the city council shall investigate the fitness of the applicant to 

engage in the business of operating taxicabs and the fitness of the equipment to be used, and shall 

also consider and determine whether the demands of public convenience, necessity and safety justify 

the issuance of such permit. 

Sec. 86-68. - Issuance or denial. 
 

If the city council finds favorably to the applicant and decides to grant a permit for the operation of 

taxicabs, a permit as provided in this division shall be issued to the applicant. If the city council finds 

against the applicant and decides that the public convenience, necessity and safety do not justify the 

issuance of such permit or that the applicant is not fit to conduct the taxicab business or the equipment 

is not fit for such business, then no permit shall be issued, and notice of the action of the city council 

shall be given to the applicant, setting forth the reason for the refusal of such permit. 

Sec. 86-69. - Occupational license required. 
 

Prior to the issuance of a permit for the operation of taxicabs, the applicant shall obtain an 

occupational license. 

Sec. 86-70. - Transfer. 
 

A permit for the operation of taxicabs shall not be transferable, except upon application to and 

consent of the city council. 

Sec. 86-71. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any person engaged in the taxicab business is found to be in violation of the provisions 

of this article or the traffic ordinances of the city or of any of the laws of the state, the city council may, 

upon complaint or upon its own motion, issue an order to such person to appear at a fixed time and place 

for investigation. If the city council is satisfied, after such hearing, that such person is guilty of the 

violations charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period or revoke entirely the permit 

issued to such person. 

DIVISION 3. - DRIVER'S PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-91. - Required. 
 

No person shall operate or drive a taxicab upon any street unless he has obtained a permit pursuant 

to the provisions of this division. 

Sec. 86-92. - Application and investigation. 
 

Any person having resided continuously in the state for not less than six months immediately 

preceding the making of application for a permit to operate a taxicab and being 18 years of age or over 

may make application to the city clerk for a permit to operate a taxicab. A verbal or written examination, 

116



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 16 of 16 

 

or both, may be given by the chief of police to each applicant to determine knowledge of city streets, locations 

and environs. 

Sec. 86-93. - Issuance; contents. 
 

It shall be the duty of the chief of police, if the applicant for a permit under this division is knowledgeable 

of the provisions of this article and of the traffic ordinance of the city, and the applicant pays the required fee 

and otherwise complies with this division for the initial year, to issue such person a written permit, which permit 

shall be signed by the city clerk and sealed with the corporate seal of the city, and shall bear the name, address, 

sex, age, signature, photograph and fingerprints of the applicant. The chief of police shall procure the fingerprints 

and a photograph of the applicant and shall keep the fingerprints and photograph on permanent file in his office. 

The fingerprints and photograph shall be voluntarily furnished by the applicant at the time of filing his 

application. 

Sec. 86-94. - State commercial license required. 
 

No person shall be issued a taxicab driver's permit unless he holds a commercial license issued by the state. 

Sec. 86-95. - Alteration or destruction prohibited. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person holding a taxicab driver's permit to wilfully alter, deface, obliterate or 

destroy the permit, or to cause the permit to be defaced, obliterated or destroyed. 

Sec. 86-96. - Display. 
 

Every driver or operator of any taxicab operated shall have his driver's permit displayed in such taxicab in a 

conspicuous place so as to be easily observed by any person occupying such taxicab. 

Sec. 86-97. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any operator or driver of a taxicab is found to be violating the provisions of this article, or the 

traffic ordinances of the city, or any of the laws of the state, the city council may, upon complaint or upon its own 

motion, issue an order to such operator or driver to appear at a fixed time and place for investigation. If the city 

council shall be satisfied after such hearing of the violation as charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a 

fixed period, or revoke entirely, the driver's permit issued. 

Sec. 86-98. - Appeals. 
 

Any person whose taxicab driver's permit is refused, suspended or revoked by the chief of police may appeal, 

by filing notice thereof with the city clerk within 30 days from the time of such refusal, revocation or suspension. 

Such appeal as filed shall not act as a supersedeas until such time as the city council shall take final action on 

such appeal. 

117



 
 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

120 East Main Street, First Floor 

Apopka, FL 32703 

 

 

RE: LYFT TESTIMONY AND PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 

 

 

Dear Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony on Proposed Ordinance 2511 for consideration by the full 

Council.  We at Lyft believe in working collaboratively towards developing an appropriate regulatory 

framework to allow for the successful continuing operation of Lyft, other ridesharing platforms, and existing 

industry.   

 

While Lyft supports many of the changes made to the City’s Vehicle for Hire Code in Proposed Ordinance 

2511, Lyft believes that there are still ways in which the Proposed Ordinance should be improved.  As such, 

we respectfully request the Council to consider delaying any action on Proposed Ordinance until the next full 

Council meeting.   

 

While we appreciate the Council’s work in updating the City’s Vehicle for Hire Code, Lyft respectfully 

suggests that some areas of the Proposed Ordinance be reconsidered, and that the Council considers 

eliminating some of the burdens placed on individual drivers.   

 

Please find attached our suggested amendments to Proposed Ordinance 2511, which we hope will be given 

fair consideration with an opportunity for both public and City Council input.   

 

 

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Timothy Alborg  

Public Policy Manager 

 

118



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
VACATING AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 
OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY 
WRITTEN, ADOPTING NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER 
AMENDING THE PERMITTING AND REGULATION OF 
TAXICABS AND CREATING REGULATIONS FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND OPERATORS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in the best 
interest of the City to update its regulations for vehicles for hire in recognition of changes and advances 
in modern business models of private automobile transportation. 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING: Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka 
Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) indicate 
an  omission from  the existing text which is  intended to remain    unchanged. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE    CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. The provisions of CHAPTER 86, VEHICLES FOR HIRE, shall be vacated and 

deleted in its entirety, and the following shall be adopted in their place. The provisions to be vacated and 
deleted are attached as Exhibit “A.” 

 

Chapter 86 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 86-1. - Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Company means any person, association, corporation or other organization which operates or 
intends to engage in the business of operating vehicles for hire or operate as a TNC. 

Conviction means the conviction by a court including an adjudication of guilt on a plea of guilty or 
nolo contendere or the forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime. 

Digital platform means any online or smartphone enabled application that allows passengers to 
request transportation network vehicle services. 

Digital credential means the permission or access given to a driver to operate on a company's digital 
platform. 

Driver means an individual permitted to drive a vehicle for hire. 

Fees mean nonrefundable payments required in this chapter. 

Limousine means a specialized vehicle not equipped with a taximeter and for hire only by 
prearrangement at a rate charged per hour, or fixed in advance, and provided also that each such vehicle 
for hire is: (1) chauffeured, (2) a luxury class passenger vehicle built or modified for the purpose of a 
limousine as defined and recognized by the limousine industry; and (3) operated on a reserved,   hourly 

119



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 2 of 16 

 
basis for a continuous period. A vehicle which is held out to be a limousine or which has an appearance 
deceptively similar to a limousine is a limousine for the purposes of this chapter. 

Narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and central nervous system stimulants. The term 
"narcotic drugs" as used in this chapter shall mean coca leaves, opium, cannabis, marijuana, isonipecaine 
and every synthetic substance known to have narcotic action. The term "barbituric acid derivative" means 
each of the salts and derivatives of barbituric acid, also known as malonyl urea, and derivatives, 
compounds, mixtures or preparations thereof. "Barbiturate" or "barbiturates" shall include all hypnotic 
or somnifacient drugs, whether or not derivatives of barbituric acids. The term "central nervous system 
stimulants" means amphetamine and desocyephedrine, and any derivative, compounds, mixture or 
preparation thereof. 

Permit means the authority granted to companies to operate, or persons who qualify to drive, 
vehicles for hire. 

Revocation means the rescinding of a permit. A person or entity whose permit is revoked shall not 
be entitled to reinstatement or an opportunity to reapply for such permit for a period of two years except 
as provided in subsection 86-61(5). 

Shuttle bus means a vehicle with a capacity of at least eight persons, including the driver, that is 
operated on a fixed route, or owner and operated directly by a motel or hotel and limited to registered 
guests thereof. 

Suspension means the temporary rescinding of a permit or license. The suspension may be for a time 
certain or indefinite pending compliance with the terms of this chapter. 

Taxicab means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, including the driver, 
equipped with a taximeter operated under a company and vehicle permit required by this article, which 
is routed under the direction of the person hiring the vehicle. 

Taximeter means an instrument or device attached to a vehicle and designed to measure 
mechanically or electronically the distance traveled by such vehicle, to record the times such vehicle 
travels or is in waiting, and to indicate the fare to be obtained. 

Transportation service means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, 
including the driver, which is not equipped with a taximeter, which charges passengers a fare generally 
based on a flat fee, and does not operate over a fixed or defined route but routed under the direction of 
the person hiring the vehicle. 

Transportation network application company ("TNC company") means any company operating in 
the city that uses a digital network or software application to connect a passenger to transportation 
network services provided by a transportation network operator. 

Transportation network operator means any driver or operator who operates a personal vehicle that 
utilizes any digital platform to arrange transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the 
passenger and that is in connection with a digital platform controlled by a TNC company. 

Transportation network service means the provision of transportation by a transportation network 
operator to a rider, beginning when the transportation network operator accepts a ride requested through 
a digital platform controlled by a TNC company, continuing while the transportation network operator 
transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last requesting rider departs from the personal vehicle. 

Use of narcotic drugs. The word "use" as employed in this chapter in relation to the drugs described 
in this chapter shall apply to any person who uses one or more of the narcotic drugs or barbituric acid 
derivatives or central nervous system stimulants as defined this section to any extent, with or without 
medical need or authority or prescription. 

Vehicle for hire means any vehicle, whether owned by the driver or company, that is operated by a 
taxicab driver, transportation service driver, transportation network operator, any other motor    vehicle 

120



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 3 of 16 

 
with driver transporting passengers for a fare, fee, or other charge in the city. The term vehicle for hire, 
by definition, excludes: 

(1) School, church, college or university buses; 

(2) Sightseeing cars and buses; 

(3) Ambulances; 

(4) Funeral home vehicles; 

(5) Interstate buses; 

(6) Limousines; 

(7) Shuttle buses. 

Vehicle for hire administrator means the City Administrator or his/her designee. 

ARTICLE II. - COMPANY PERMIT 

Sec. 86-31. - Application; contents. 

(a) No taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company shall operate or engage in the 
business of operating vehicles for hire or operating a TNC within the city without having first 
obtained a company permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee. An application shall 
be submitted on forms furnished by the vehicles for hire administrator or designee containing 
appropriate information which is reasonably related to the business of operating vehicles for hire. 

(b) In order to secure or renew a company permit, the company applicant shall file an application with 
the vehicles for hire administrator or designee, and such application shall be verified under oath and 
shall furnish the following information: 

(1) The name and address of the company. If the company is a corporation or partnership, the name 
and address of all officers, shareholders, partners or any principals or owners with an interest 
greater than five twenty percent of the company must be listed. 

(2) The color scheme and insignia to be used to designate the vehicles of any taxicab company. 

(3) No company permit shall be granted to a taxicab company operating less than five vehicles. 
The vehicles must be currently operating, licensed, and inspected as required by this chapter. 
Each vehicle must conform to the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
maximum passenger standards allowed for the vehicle to operate. 

(4) Proof of proper amount of insurance coverage as provided in section 86-93, with the insurance 
coverage being filed with vehicle for hire administrator and approved by the City. 

(5) Such other information as the vehicle for hire administrator may require. 

(c) Payment of an annual company permit fee of $250.00. 

Sec. 86-32. - Maintaining a company permit. 

(a) In order to maintain a company permit to operate or engage in the business of operating vehicles for 
hire or operating a TNC, the company must: 

(1) Obtain and hold a current business tax receipt from the city as required by chapter 74, if 
applicable. 

(2) Maintain a telephone number that is monitored 24 hours a day for emergency contact by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee or law enforcement, and an e-mail address for citizen 
complaints or concerns. 

121



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 4 of 16 

 
(3) Maintain the name, home address, and telephone number of each driver affiliated with the 

company. 

(4) Maintain a log listing the year, make, model, license plate number , and vehicle identification 
number (serial number) and ownership status of all vehicles in the company's fleet or that 
operate on a company's platform. 

(5) Maintain proper amount of insurance as provided in section 86-93. 

(6) Maintain records available for inspection, upon request by the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, pursuant to a complaint received or if the vehicle for hire administrator has a 
reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this chapter. 
The records shall include, but not be limited to, records pertaining to permitted/certified drivers, 
vehicle inspection records, daily logs, and that the maximum rate charged in compliance with 
section 86-95. Unless otherwise agreed to by the company and the vehicle for hire 
administrator, such records shall be made available for inspection to the vehicle for hire 
administrator at a permit holder's place of business or a mutually agreed location in the city. 

(7) Each company shall implement a zero-tolerance policy on the use of drugs or alcohol applicable 
to all drivers, and provide notice of the policy to all company drivers and to the public through 
its website, if applicable. In addition, the company shall provide notice to the public on the 
procedure for reporting a driver the passenger reasonably suspects was under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol during the course of the ride. The company shall cooperate with the vehicle 
for hire administrator or designee during the pendency of the investigation pursuant to 
subsection 86-63(b)(3). 

(8) The vehicle for hire administrator or police chief is authorized to conduct annual audits of any 
company authorized to operate under this chapter. The company shall provide to the vehicle for 
hire administrator, on request, up to 250 unique identification numbers, each of which has been 
assigned to an individual driver affiliated with the company. The vehicle for hire administrator 
may send to the company a list of up to ten driver identification numbers and request copies of 
records held by the company for those ten drivers. Within five business days of receiving a 
request seeking records, the company shall make available to the vehicle for hire administrator 
at a company's place of business or a mutually agreed setting in the city, records to verify that 
the company has properly screened drivers in accordance with section 86-61; provided, that the 
company may redact any records it provides access to in order to protect the privacy and 
identifying information of the driver. 

Sec. 86-33. - Revocation or suspension of a company permit; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of company permit; grounds. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined in 
subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the authority 
to revoke or suspend any company permit which has been granted or which may hereinafter be 
granted by the city. Prior to suspension or revocation, the company shall be served notice by certified 
mail or hand delivery of the proposed action to be taken and shall have an opportunity to present to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee evidence as to why the company permit should not be 
revoked or suspended. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a company permit 
shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the company to maintain any of the general qualifications applicable to the initial 
granting of the company permit as set forth in section 86-31 or maintaining a company permit 
as set forth in section 86-32. 

(2) Obtaining a company permit by providing false information. 

122



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 5 of 16 

 

(3) Conviction by a court of competent jurisdiction of any shareholder, officer, partner, member, 
principal or owner of any corporation, partnership, firm or association holding a five percent 
interest or more in the entity, of any of the following: criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, 
aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd 
and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to 
commit any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system 
stimulants if such violation or violations are related to operation of the company, or violation 
of any ordinance of the city governing the conduct of a company. 

(4) Allowing any person to operate a company's designated vehicle for hire, or operate on the 
company's digital platform, without an active driver permit or credential, or when said person's 
permit or credential has been suspended or revoked because of a positive drug test pursuant to 
section 86-63. 

(c) Right of appeal. Any company whose permit is revoked or suspended by the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee may appeal such decision to the City Council. Such appeal shall be taken 
by filing written notice thereof, in duplicate, with the city administrator's office within five days 
after the decision of the vehicles for hire administrator or designee. The notice of the appeal shall 
contain the grounds for the appeal and shall contain information that either the finding is contrary 
to the law or is not supported by competent substantial evidence. The vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall forthwith transmit copies of the appeal to the City Council along with all papers 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is based. The filing of a notice of appeal 
will not delay the effectiveness of any suspension or revocation. 

ARTICLE III. - VEHICLE FOR HIRE DRIVERS 

Sec. 86-60. - Prohibition against unauthorized operation. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate on behalf of a taxicab company, transportation 
service, or other vehicle for hire for the transportation of passengers within the city, or on a TNC's 
digital platform, or to cause or permit any other person to drive or operate a vehicle for hire: 

(1) Without first obtaining a written permit for the operation of a motor vehicle for hire from the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee; 

(2) Without having been certified to operate a motor vehicle for hire on behalf of a company or on 
the company's digital platform; or 

(3) When the company permit has previously been revoked pursuant to section 86-33. 

(b) Any person found to have violated this section shall be punished by the following: 

(1) A fine $150.00 for the first citation; 

(2) A fine of $250.00 for the second citation; and 

(3) A fine of $500.00 for the third or subsequent citation. 

Sec. 86-61. - Application for driver's permit. 

(a) In order to secure a driver permit or to obtain certification from a company, an applicant must: 

(1) Be at least 18 years of age; 

(2) Possess a valid state driver's license; 

(3) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have been convicted of: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs; or 

123



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 6 of 16 

 
b. Violation of any ordinance or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 

operation of a motor vehicle. 

(4) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have more than three moving 
violations; 

(5) Not have been convicted within the seven years previous to the date of application for the 
violation of any of the following criminal offenses of the state or any other state or of the United 
States: aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, lewd and 
lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit 
any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the offenses listed in this subsection, or 
been convicted within the last seven years of any felony in the commission of which a motor 
vehicle was used, perjury or false swearing in making any statement under oath in connection 
with application for a driver's permit, any felony involving theft, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivative and/or central nervous system 
stimulants. Applicants who have been convicted or served any time, probation, or parole for a 
criminal offense of homicide, rape, sexual battery, or child molestation must have their 
complete criminal history reviewed and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator; 

(0) Be able to communicate in the English language. 

(c)(b) An applicant may apply for a permit or credential by completing a form provided by the vehicle 
for hire administrator establishing that the applicant meets the requirements of subsection. 

(d)(c) Upon approval by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or certification by the taxicab 
company, transportation service, or TNC company, the driver shall be issued: 

(1) A permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee; or 

(2) Credentials from the taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company, which may be 
digital credentials, indicating that the driver was certified by the company, and the credential 
shall include the following information: 

a. The name or logo of the company; 

b. The name of the driver; 

c. The license plate number associated with the vehicle that the driver has been authorized to 
use. 

(3) The driver shall display the permit or credential in a manner that it is visible to the passengers 
of the vehicle while the vehicle is operating, or make available at a minimum the driver's first 
name, photograph, and make, model, and license plate number to the passenger through the 
company's digital platform. The driver shall present the permit or credential upon request to a 
law enforcement officer, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or designated airport 
personnel upon request. If the driver maintains a digital credential, upon a traffic stop, a driver 
shall provide law enforcement with access to a device containing the information required to 
be maintained as part of the driver's digital credential and an electronic record sufficient to 
establish that the trip in question was prearranged through a digital platform. 

 An applicant must pay an annual driver application fee of $100.00. 

Sec. 86-62. - Maintaining driver's permit. 

In order to maintain a valid permit or credential to drive a taxicab, transportation service, or other 
vehicle for hire, a driver must: 

(4) Wear proper dress while operating a vehicle for hire. 

(5) Maintain a neat appearance. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.38",  No bullets or

numbering

124



8 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 7 of 16 
 

(6) Not smoke while carrying passengers. 

(7) Maintain a log upon which are recorded all trips made each day, showing time and place of 
origin and destination of each trip and amount of fare. Such logs must be maintained by the 
company or the vehicle owner, if not maintained by the driver, and shall be made available to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for a compliance inquiry if the administrator has 
a reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this 
chapter. 

(8) Renew his driver's permit or credential during the month of the driver's permit or credential 
expiration date. 

(9) Wear a seatbelt at all times while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation 
network services. 

Sec. 86-63. - Revocation or suspension of driver's permits; grounds; right of appeal. 

(a) Revocation or suspension of driver's permits or credential. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined 
in subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the 
authority to revoke or suspend any driver's permit or credential which has been issued or which may 
hereinafter be issued by the city. Before a driver's permit or credential shall be denied, suspended 
or revoked, notice of intention thereof shall be served upon the driver either by registered mail or 
personal service; however, such notice shall not be necessary for a denial of an original permit or 
credential. However, any such applicant or driver shall be given an opportunity to be heard by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee. 

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a driver's permit or 
credential shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(1) The failure of the driver to maintain any and all of the general qualifications as applicable to 
the initial issuance of a permit as set forth in section 86-61; 

(2) Obtaining a permit or credential by providing false information; 

(3) Violation by a driver of any of the following offenses: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs. A driver shall be required 
to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, upon receipt of a passenger complaint, : 

b.a. Where reasonable suspicion exists that a driver is suspected of abusing alcohol or misusing 
prescription drugs or controlled substances; or. 

0. Where a driver has been involved in a crash with serious injury or serious property 
damage while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation network 
services. "Serious injury" is defined as a physical condition that creates a substantial 
risk of death, serious personal disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the 
function of any bodily member or organ. "Serious property damage" is defined as one 
or more of the motor vehicles involved in the crash is "totaled", or one or more of the 
vehicles sustains significant disabling damage to public and/or private property which 
equals or exceeds an apparent damage of $5,000.00 or more as estimated by the law 
enforcement officer who conducts the investigation at the scene of the traffic crash; or 

d.b. Refusing or failing to submit to a drug test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall be due cause for revocation of the driver's permit or credential with no 
reapplication for one year. Failing a drug or alcohol test shall be due cause for revocation 
of the driver's permit or credential with no reapplication for one year. 

e.c. Criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, 

125



9 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

kidnapping,  robbery,  child  molestation,  lewd  and  lascivious  acts,  armed  trespassing, 
carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit any of the above, criminal 
attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or distribution of narcotic drugs, 
barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system stimulants, violation of any 
ordinance of the city governing the conduct of drivers of a vehicle for hire. 

(4) Charging a fare contrary to any fares established and approved by the city commission pursuant 
to section 86-95; 

(5) Violation of any ordinances or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 
operation of a taxicab, transportation service, TNC company, or other vehicle for hire; 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 8 of 16 

 

(6) Whenever it shall appearUpon receipt of a passenger complaint alleging that a driver has 
disorders characterized by lapses of consciousness or other mental or physical disabilities 
affecting his or her ability to drive safely; 

(7) Accumulating nine or more points within a six-month period as outlined in F.S. § 322.27(3)d. 

(8) Violating the requirements of section 86-96. 

Sec. 86-64. - Duration of driver permit. 

Each driver permit or credential issued pursuant to section 86-61 above shall be valid for one year 
from the date of issuance. 

ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

Sec. 86-91. - Identifying signs, monograms and insignias. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

Each taxicab shall be readily identifiable as a taxicab and shall bear on the outside of each rear or 
front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the person or corporation to 
whom the franchise is issued. Each such taxicab shall also be numbered consecutively, with such 
numbers being placed conspicuously on each vehicle, with such numerals being not less than four 
and one-half inches nor more than six inches in height. 

(b) Transportation services. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a transportation service shall be readily identifiable as a transportation 
service and shall bear on the outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches 
in height, the name of the person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by. 

(2) No transportation service shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself as a "taxi" or "cab" 
or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab. 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company/transportation network operator. 

(1) Each vehicle operated by a TNC company or transportation network operator shall bear on the 
outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the 
person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by, or any symbol or insignia 
approved by the vehicle for hire administratordisplay a consistent signage or emblem on the 
transportation network operator’s personal vehicle at all times while the transportation network 
operator is active on the TNC company’s network.  The signage or emblem shall be sufficiently 
large or color-contrasted to be readable during daylight hours from a distance of 50 feet, 
reflective, illuminated, or otherwise visible in darkness, and capable of sufficiently identifying 
a personal vehicle as being associated with the TNC company. 

126



10 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

(2) No transportation network operator vehicle shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself 
as a "taxi" or "cab" or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab, or otherwise give the 
impression that the operator is available to solicit passengers other than through the digital 
platform. 

(3) No transportation network operator vehicle shall place any type or form of light device or other 
device on the roof, commonly known as a top light or top hat, whether or not permanently or 
temporarily affixed to the vehicle, or have within the interior of the vehicle. 

 

Sec. 86-92. - Taximeter. 

a. All taxicabs operated under the authority of this chapter shall be equipped with taximeters fastened 
in a manner so that the face thereof shall be visible and readable to passengers at all times both  

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 9 of 16 

day and night. The face of the taximeter shall be set so that it will register and compute on a 
mileage basis while such taxicab is moving and on a time basis while such taxicab is standing and 
while the service is being rendered the fare to be charged. Such taximeter shall be operated 
mechanically by a mechanism of standard design and construction, driven either from the 
transmission or from one of the front wheels by a flexible and permanently attached driving 
mechanism. 

a. No vehicle for hire other than a taxicab is authorized to install or be equipped with a taximeter. 

Sec. 86-93. - Liability insurance required. 

No vehicle for hire shall be placed in service unless such vehicle is in compliance with Florida law 
for liability insurance purposes. Proof of such insurance coverage, which may be provided on a blanket 
basis, shall be filed annually with and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for the 
carriage of passengers. 

Sec. 86-94. - Seat belts required. 

All vehicles for hire covered by this chapter shall be equipped with operational seat belts for each 
passenger. 

Sec. 86-95. - Authority of city commission to establish rates and charges; displaying rate cards. 

(a) Taxicabs. 

(1) The city commission may by ordinance establish maximum rates and charges for the 
transportation of persons and their baggage within the corporate limits of the city and suburban 
territory adjacent thereto. Any ordinance establishing rates as provided by this section shall 
become effective 24 hours after its adoption. 

(2) Every taxicab operating under this chapter shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a 
schedule of rates for the transportation of person within the corporate limits of the city, and no 
charges shall be made in excess of the rates so posted. 

(3) There is hereby established a schedule of the maximum rates which can be charged by all 
taxicab drivers operating taxicabs within the city. A taximeter may be set so that it will register 
and compute on a mileage or other basis at less than the maximum rates set forth in this section. 

(b) Transportation service. 

(1) All fares as agreed to between any transportation service operator and any passenger must be 
agreed upon prior to leaving the point of origin. No transportation service operator may increase 
the agreed upon fare after leaving the point of origin. 

(2) No transportation service shall be authorized to charge for wait time, or to charge any other 

Commented [A1]: Double check on insurance provision. 

127



11 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

rates or fees except for mileage. 

(3) Every transportation service vehicle shall have cards displayed visibly from the outside of the 
vehicle on the passenger side and on the inside of the right rear window at the eye level of a 
seated passenger that state the following: "RATE OF TRANSPORT IS BY FLAT FEE ONLY". 

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company or transportation network operator. 

(1) All TNC companies shall disclose the fare calculation method, the applicable rates being 
charged, and the option for an estimated fare to a passenger before the passenger arranges or 
books a trip with the transportation network application company or transportation network 
operator. 

128



12 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 10 of 16 

 

(2) Upon completion of the trip, a TNC company shall transmit an electronic receipt to the 
passenger's e-mail or mobile application that lists the: origin and destination of the trip; the total 
time and distance of the trip; and a breakdown of the total fare paid, if any. 

Sec. 86-96. - Miscellaneous regulations and other penalties. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any driver or operator of a vehicle for hire to drive or operate or be on duty 
or on call for the operation of a vehicle for hire for more than 12 hours within any 24-hour period. 

(b) A driver shall take the most direct route to a passenger's destination unless otherwise authorized or 
directed by the passenger. 

(c) No driver shall refuse to accept a passenger unless the passenger is obviously disorderly, dangerous, 
or otherwise a threat to the safety or welfare of the driver. 

(d) It shall be unlawful for the driver operating in the city to permit any person to accompany or use 
such vehicle for hire for the purpose of prostitution, or to direct, take or transport any other person 
with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the purpose of such directing, taking or 
transporting is for the purpose of prostitution. 

(e) No vehicle for hire shall be permitted to carry nonpaying passengers while transporting a paying 
passenger or passengers except for the purpose of driver training. 

(f) No vehicle for hire shall solicit or carry a paying passenger while in the process of carrying another 
paying passenger except when requested to do so by the latter passenger. 

(g) Transportation network operators shall exclusively accept passengers booked through a 
transportation network company's digital platform, and shall not solicit or accept street-hails. 

(h) No TNC company may provide personal information about a passenger to a transportation network 
operator, including a passenger's full name, e-mail address, or telephone number. 

Sec. 86-97. - Enforcement. 

The city police department and the vehicles for hire administrator shall be authorized to enforce the 
regulations contained in this chapter, including the promulgation of rules consistent with this chapter 
and the setting of fees. 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION. It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and 

the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections 

of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" 

may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by 

the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the 

City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 

ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, 

or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses, or 

phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

129



13 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 11 of 16 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 

requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force 

and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016  
 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: September 21, 2016  
 

 

 

 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 
 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 
 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 
 

 

 

 
 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 
 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:   August 19, 2016 

September 9, 2016 

130



14 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 12 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Sec. 86-39. - Liability insurance. 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator, driver or chauffeur of any taxicab to drive or operate 

the taxicab or to permit the taxicab to be driven or operated upon the public streets, unless such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur shall have first procured and filed with the city clerk a liability 

insurance policy issued by a good and responsible surety company, which insurance company or 

surety company must have authority to do business as such in the state and must be acceptable to 

and approved by the city council. The amount of liability insurance or surety bond for each taxicab 

shall be the minimum required by the state for liability insurance, or, if liability insurance is not 

required by state law, the minimum financial responsibility requirements of the Financial 

Responsibility Law, F.S. ch. 324. 

(b) Such policy of insurance or surety bond may be in the form of a separate policy or separate surety 

bond for each taxicab, or may be in the form of a fleet policy covering all taxicabs operated by such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur, in which latter event such policy of insurance or surety bond 

shall provide the same liability for each taxicab operated in service as specified in subsection (a) of 

this section. Every taxicab hired in service shall have conspicuously displayed therein or thereon 

some sign evidencing the fact that the provisions of this section have been complied with, with the 

form thereof to be prescribed by the chief of police. 

(c) No policy of insurance or surety bond as provided for in this section shall be cancelled until the 

expiration of five days after notice of intended cancellation thereof has been given in writing to the 

city clerk by registered mail or personal delivery of such notice, and a provision therefor shall be 

embodied in the policy or surety bond. 

Sec. 86-40. - Use of streets for transacting business. 
 

Except as provided in this article, no taxicab shall occupy space on the streets for the transaction of 

business other than the picking up of passengers. All places of business of taxicabs shall be maintained 

off the streets. 

Sec. 86-41. - Use of improper vehicles. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or drive, as a taxicab, in or upon any street, any motor- 

driven vehicle, unless the vehicle is a taxicab as defined in this article. 

Sec. 86-42. - Name of owner or operator to be displayed on vehicle. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any taxicab to be driven upon the streets unless the name of the person either 

owning or operating such taxicab, or the trade name under which such taxicab is operated, is 

conspicuously painted on such taxicab in letters not less than two inches in height. 

Sec. 86-43. - Meters. 
 

(a) All taxicabs shall be equipped with mechanical devices, commonly called taxicab meters, for 

registering the fare to be charged. 

131



15 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 13 of 16 

 

(b) Every meter in use shall be placed in such taxicabs at a location that will be plainly visible at all 

times to the occupants of such taxicabs. Between the hours of sunset and sunrise, the dial of the 

meter shall be illuminated whenever it is in use. 

(c) Whenever a taxicab is not in service, the meter shall show no fare and the flag shall be in the upright 

position. When a taxicab is in service, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be lowered and the 

meter shall be in the calculating position. 

(d) Upon the completion of service by a taxicab, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be raised and 

the meter shall be returned to the noncalculating position and its dials cleared. 

(e) It shall be unlawful for the operator or driver of any taxicab to operate the taxicab on the streets of 

the city with any occupant in such taxicab other than the driver when the flag or indicator on the 

taxicab meter is upright and in the noncalculating position, except when operating on an hourly or 

trip rate. 

(f) When the hourly rate or the special trip rate is used, an appropriate sign indicating that the cab is on 

a trip or hourly rate shall be exhibited. 

(g) It shall be the duty of the person owning and operating taxicabs to have the meter in good working 

condition and operating accurately as to the registration of mileage and fare. Such meters shall be 

sealed in a manner that will prevent any person from tampering with or changing the adjustment of 

the meter. It shall be unlawful for any person to tamper with or change the adjustment of a meter, 

except the owner operating the taxicab to which such meter is affixed, or a person duly designated 

by the owner, or a meter mechanic. 

(h) It shall be unlawful for any person owning and operating taxicabs with meters affixed thereto to 

permit the taxicabs to be operated on the streets of the city when such meters do not accurately 

register the mileage and the rate as set forth by the ordinances of the city. All meters shall be subject 

to inspection and test by any police officer at all times when cabs are not carrying passengers. 

Sec. 86-44. - Rates and charges. 
 

(a) Posting. Each taxicab shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a schedule of rates for the 

transportation of persons within the corporate limits of the city, and no charges shall be made in 

excess of the rates so posted. 

(b) Determination. All rate charges or fees for the use of taxicabs using meters shall be determined by 

a meter rate, hourly rate or special trip rate and by no other method. All charges are for the exclusive 

use of the taxicab, and shall apply regardless of the number of passengers transported. 

Sec. 86-45. - Fare receipts; right to demand payment of fare in advance. 
 

If demanded by the passenger, the driver in charge of a taxicab shall deliver to the person paying 

for the hiring of the taxicab, at the time of such payment, a receipt therefor in legible writing, containing 

the name of the owner and the city license or permit number, showing upon such receipt all items for 

which a charge is made, the total amount paid and the date of payment. Every driver of any such taxicab 

shall have the right to demand payment of the legal fare in advance, and may refuse employment unless 

so prepaid. 

Sec. 86-46. - Soliciting passengers near intersection. 

132



16 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 14 of 16 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person owning or operating one or more vehicles for hire in the city to 

operate such motor vehicles over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting patronage, 

picking up passengers or delivering passengers at any point within 100 feet of any intersecting street 

corner along such street. It is the purpose and intent of this section to prohibit such practice within 100 

feet in all directions from such intersections. Such distance in all cases shall be measured from the center 

of the intersection. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any taxicab 

or vehicle operated for hire from responding to any specific request for passage from any person seeking 

the services offered by such taxi or motor vehicle or from stopping at any point within the city for the 

purpose of delivering a passenger who has been picked up at any part of the city in a manner not 

prohibited by law. This section shall not apply to any buses or motor vehicles owned or operated by any 

bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city. 

Sec. 86-47. - Soliciting passengers by preceding or following scheduled bus. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person operating motor vehicles for hire in the city to operate such motor 

vehicle over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting the patronage of passengers by 

immediately preceding or following any duly scheduled bus or motor vehicle operated for such purpose 

by any bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city along the streets of the city. 

Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any duly licensed taxi 

from responding to any specific request for passage from any patron seeking the services offered by such 

duly licensed taxi. 

Sec. 86-48. - Smoking by driver. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any driver, operator or chauffeur of any taxicab to smoke while the taxicab 

is occupied by a passenger. 

Sec. 86-49. - Use for immoral purposes. 
 

It shall be unlawful for the driver of a taxicab to permit any person to accompany or use such taxicab 

for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or assignation, or to direct, take or transport, or to offer or agree 

to direct, take or transport, any other person, with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the 

purpose of such directing, taking or transporting is for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or 

assignation. 

Sec. 86-50. - Display of political advertisements. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person licensed by the city to operate or drive a taxicab upon any street 

within the city with a political ad displayed for anyone seeking public office at any time. 

DIVISION 2. - BUSINESS PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-66. - Required. 
 

It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated any taxicab business unless a permit for the 

operation thereof shall have been first issued by the city council in the manner provided in this division. 

Sec. 86-67. - Application and investigation. 
 

(a) An application for the permit required by this division shall be made in writing to the city council. 
Such application shall set forth the name, residence address, and address of place of business of the 

133



17 

 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 15 of 16 

 
 applicant and the kind, make and model of the vehicle to be used in the business. If the applicant is  
a copartnership, the application shall give the nmes and residence addresses of the copartners. If the 

application is a corporation, the application shall set forth the name of the corporation and the residence 

address of its officers and board of directors. The application shall set forth the trade name, if any, under which 

the applicant does or proposes to do business. 

(b) Upon the filing of an application, the city clerk shall make an investigation, including any hearing 

deemed necessary, as to each application for a permit for the operation of taxicabs. In determining 

whether a permit shall be issued, the city council shall investigate the fitness of the applicant to 

engage in the business of operating taxicabs and the fitness of the equipment to be used, and shall 

also consider and determine whether the demands of public convenience, necessity and safety justify 

the issuance of such permit. 

Sec. 86-68. - Issuance or denial. 
 

If the city council finds favorably to the applicant and decides to grant a permit for the operation of 

taxicabs, a permit as provided in this division shall be issued to the applicant. If the city council finds 

against the applicant and decides that the public convenience, necessity and safety do not justify the 

issuance of such permit or that the applicant is not fit to conduct the taxicab business or the equipment 

is not fit for such business, then no permit shall be issued, and notice of the action of the city council 

shall be given to the applicant, setting forth the reason for the refusal of such permit. 

Sec. 86-69. - Occupational license required. 
 

Prior to the issuance of a permit for the operation of taxicabs, the applicant shall obtain an 

occupational license. 

Sec. 86-70. - Transfer. 
 

A permit for the operation of taxicabs shall not be transferable, except upon application to and 

consent of the city council. 

Sec. 86-71. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any person engaged in the taxicab business is found to be in violation of the provisions 

of this article or the traffic ordinances of the city or of any of the laws of the state, the city council may, 

upon complaint or upon its own motion, issue an order to such person to appear at a fixed time and place 

for investigation. If the city council is satisfied, after such hearing, that such person is guilty of the 

violations charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period or revoke entirely the permit 

issued to such person. 

DIVISION 3. - DRIVER'S PERMIT 
 

Sec. 86-91. - Required. 
 

No person shall operate or drive a taxicab upon any street unless he has obtained a permit pursuant 
to the provisions of this division. 

Sec. 86-92. - Application and investigation. 
 

Any person having resided continuously in the state for not less than six months immediately 

preceding the making of application for a permit to operate a taxicab and being 18 years of age or over 

may make application to the city clerk for a permit to operate a taxicab. A verbal or written examination, 

134



 

LYFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2511 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 16 of 16 

 

or both, may be given by the chief of police to each applicant to determine knowledge of city streets, locations 

and environs. 

Sec. 86-93. - Issuance; contents. 
 

It shall be the duty of the chief of police, if the applicant for a permit under this division is knowledgeable 

of the provisions of this article and of the traffic ordinance of the city, and the applicant pays the required fee 

and otherwise complies with this division for the initial year, to issue such person a written permit, which permit 

shall be signed by the city clerk and sealed with the corporate seal of the city, and shall bear the name, address, 

sex, age, signature, photograph and fingerprints of the applicant. The chief of police shall procure the fingerprints 

and a photograph of the applicant and shall keep the fingerprints and photograph on permanent file in his office. 

The fingerprints and photograph shall be voluntarily furnished by the applicant at the time of filing his 

application. 

Sec. 86-94. - State commercial license required. 
 

No person shall be issued a taxicab driver's permit unless he holds a commercial license issued by the state. 

Sec. 86-95. - Alteration or destruction prohibited. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person holding a taxicab driver's permit to wilfully alter, deface, obliterate or 

destroy the permit, or to cause the permit to be defaced, obliterated or destroyed. 

Sec. 86-96. - Display. 
 

Every driver or operator of any taxicab operated shall have his driver's permit displayed in such taxicab in a 

conspicuous place so as to be easily observed by any person occupying such taxicab. 

Sec. 86-97. - Suspension or revocation. 
 

Whenever any operator or driver of a taxicab is found to be violating the provisions of this article, or the 

traffic ordinances of the city, or any of the laws of the state, the city council may, upon complaint or upon its own 

motion, issue an order to such operator or driver to appear at a fixed time and place for investigation. If the city 

council shall be satisfied after such hearing of the violation as charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a 

fixed period, or revoke entirely, the driver's permit issued. 

Sec. 86-98. - Appeals. 
 

Any person whose taxicab driver's permit is refused, suspended or revoked by the chief of police may appeal, 

by filing notice thereof with the city clerk within 30 days from the time of such refusal, revocation or suspension. 

Such appeal as filed shall not act as a supersedeas until such time as the city council shall take final action on 

such appeal. 
 

 

135



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2531 – Second Reading – Annexation - Legislative       David 
Moon 

  

136



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2531 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 4 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2531 – ANNEXATION – WON 

CHUL LEE, MYONG SEA LEE, BONG JIN CHOE AND CHONG SOON 

CHOE 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:  Won Chul Lee, Myong Sea Lee, Bong Jin Choe and Chong Soon Choe  

 

LOCATION:  2309 and 2405 West Kelly Park Road 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  39.48 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on October 14, 
2016. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 21, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
October 28, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 4, 2016 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 2, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
November 16, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

137



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 4 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2016 Annexation – Cycle No. 4 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 2, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2531, 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on November 16, 2016. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 16, 2016, postponed the Second Reading and adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2531 until December 21, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2531. 
 
 

138



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2016 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 4 

TOTAL ACRES:  53.67 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2528-2531 

Adopted this 21st day of December, 2016 

ORD. NO. ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2528 
(ADOPTED) 

 

 
 

1 
 

 

ADAMS BROTHERS 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC 

 

644 EAST 13TH STREET 
656 EAST 13TH STREET 
738 EAST 13TH STREET 

 

15-21-28-0000-00-044 
15-21-28-0000-00-210 
15-21-28-0000-00-142 
15-21-28-0000-00-073 

 

0.25 
1.37 
0.73 
0.59 
2.94 

VACANT 
LAND 

SFR (1) 
INDUSTRIAL 

 
 

2529 
(ADOPTED) 

 
 

2  SHIRLEY L. LITTLE LIFE ESTATE 17 W. OAK STREET 04-21-28-4836-00-680 0.58 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 

REIDENTIAL MAX. 
4DU/AC 

 
 

2530 
(ADOPTED) 

 
 

3 
JERRY OWENS 

LINDA S. OWENS 
2604 MARDEN ROAD 29-21-28-0000-00-030 10.67 

SFR 
MANF. HOME 

RURAL SETTLEMENT 
1DU/5 ACRES 

 
 

2531 

 
 

4 

WON CHUL LEE 
MYONG SEA LEE 
BONG JIN CHOE 

CHONG SOON CHOE 

2309 West Kelly Park 
Road 

2405 West Kelly Park 
Road 

07-20-28-0000-00-048 
07-20-28-0000-00-011 

 
9.82 

29.66 
39.48 

VACANT 
LAND 

RURAL 1DU/10 ACRES 
AGRICULTURAL 

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2016 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet  

   

139



ORDINANCE NO. 2531 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY WON CHUL LEE, MYONG SEA LEE, BONG JIN CHOE AND 
CHONG SOON CHOE LOCATED EAST OF PLYMOUTH SORRENTO 
ROAD AND NORTH OF KELLY PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Won Chul Lee, Myong Sea Lee, Bong Jin Choe And Chong Soon Choe, 

owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property 

located east of Plymouth Sorrento Road and north of Kelly Park Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed into the City of 

Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 

Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

E1/3 OF W3/4 OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SEC 07-20-28 Containing 10.67 Acres; 

and THE NW1/4 OF SE1/4 & THE W1/2 OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 (LESS W 503.05 

FT THEREOF) OF SEC 07-20-28 Containing: 29.66 Acres 

Total Acres: 39.48 

 

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

140



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2531 

PAGE 2 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 21, 2016 

October 28, 2016 

November 4, 2016  

 
READ FIRST TIME: November 2, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     December 21, 2016 
 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 

141



 

ANNEXATION 

WON CHUL LEE & MYONG SEA LEE 

 BONG JIN CHOE & CHONG SOON CHOE 

             

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2531 

         Parcel ID: 07-20-28-0000-00-048  

            07-20-28-0000-00-011 

 Total Acres: 39.48 +/-               

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

142



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2532 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative  
 Elizabeth Florence 

  

143



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2532 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2532 – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2532 – SMALL SCALE – 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CENTRAL FLORIDA 

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY, FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 10 AC)) 

TO “CITY” RESIDENTIAL LOW SUBURBAN (3.5 DU/AC); (PARCEL I.D. 

NO. 36-20-27-0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Central Florida Expressway Authority – Joseph A. Berenis, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Plymouth Sorrento Rd.     
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED  
ZONING DESIGNATION: “City” R-1A (Residential) (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map 
designation from “County”A-1 to “City” R-1A [Residential].) 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Right of way 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.302 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: vacant; 1 dwelling unit per 10 acres 
    PROPOSED: right of way; 1 dwelling unit per 3.5 acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 144



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future 

Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future 

land use designation of Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) to the property.  

 

City Council approved the annexations on September 21, 2016, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 

2513.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  

Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-

scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Residential Low Suburban is compatible with the 

designations assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 0.302 acres.  

 

The applicant intends to develop the property for use as a right of way. The proposed future land use and 

use for the property is compatible with the general character of the surrounding neighborhood. The 

Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use Designation and right of way would serve as a use for the 

adjacent properties road access. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) Future Land Use designation and the City’s 

proposed Residential Zoning so long as dwelling units are not expanded on the existing land area 

comprising the subject site. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Change of Zoning represents a change in density that 

will not yield more than nine (9) residential units, development of the subject property is considered 

“deminimus” and exempt from School Capacity Enhancement review.  However, at the time of a 

Preliminary Development Plan application for residential development, school concurrency review 

through Orange county Public Schools may be required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 7, 2016. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 14, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

145



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change 

in Future Land Use from “County” Rural (1 du/ 10 ac) to “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac) 

for the property owned by Central Florida Expressway Authority and located at Plymouth Sorrento Rd., 

contingent upon the annexation of the property into the City of Apopka. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found that the proposed Small Scale 

Future Land Use Amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 

recommended adoption (7-0) of the Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment from “County” Rural (1 

du/ 10 ac) to “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) for the property owned by Central Florida 

Expressway Authority and located at Plymouth Sorrento Road. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2532 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2532. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

146



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AA Stanton Ridge residential plat 

owned by Central Florida 

Expressway Authority 

East (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 S.R. 429-Wekiva Parkway 

South (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 Single family residence 

West (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 Single family residence 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with the 
development of residential uses.  The property is west of Plymouth Sorrento Rd. and south of Yothers Rd. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is not located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Redevelopment:   Policy 3.13. No non-conforming structure shall be substantially expanded. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection shows that there are karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property fronts no road but is west of Plymouth 
Sorrento Rd.  The vegetative communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and 
no wetlands occur on the site, and the terrain has a 5-12 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.d Low 
Density Residential Suburban Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the Property is Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac).  Based on the housing 
element of the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   
 

147



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (County designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 5.3 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 5.3 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  One single family home is the maximum development anticipated for the subject 
property. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  
This site is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan 
application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located 
within the Orange County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  
The property owner will need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available 
capacity prior to submittal of any development plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   81 GPD/Capita; 
 81 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  53,054  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 
GPD/Capita; 
 177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  210  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  210  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 
 

148



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 
7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           
 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  4  lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  4  lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.009  AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.009  AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 

149



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
 

 
Central Florida Expressway Authority 

Plymouth Sorrento Rd. 
0.302 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling unit 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 1 dwelling unit 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” R-1A 

Parcel ID #: 36-20-27-0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

150



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

151



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

152



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

153



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 

 

 

 

 

STANTON RIDGE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

154



ORDINANCE NO. 2532 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 
10 AC) TO “CITY” RESIDENTIAL LOW SUBURBAN (3.5 DU/AC) FOR 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT PLYMOUTH SORRENTO 
RD., COMPRISING 0.302 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2524 adopted on November 16, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2524, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) to “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 
DU/AC), for certain real property located at Plymouth Sorrento Rd., comprising 0.302 acres more 
or less, (Parcel No. 36-20-27-0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124); as further described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 

155



 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2532 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
         day of                  , 2016 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 7, 2016 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
December 21, 2016 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: October 28, 2016 

      December 9, 2016 

 

156



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Central Florida Expressway Authority 
Plymouth Sorrento Rd. 

0.302 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling unit 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 1 dwelling unit 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” R-1A 

Parcel ID #: 36-20-27-0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124 
 

157



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2533 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial    
 Elizabeth Florence 

  

158



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2533 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2533 – CHANGE OF ZONING – CENTRAL FLORIDA 

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2533 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY, FROM “COUNTY” A-

1 (RURAL) TO “CITY” R-1A (RESIDENTIAL) (PARCEL I.D. NO. 36-20-27-

0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124). 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Central Florida Expressway Authority – Joseph A. Berenis, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Plymouth Sorrento Rd. 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED  
FLUM DESIGNATION: Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) (NOTE: This change of zoning 

application is being processed in conjunction with a large scale FLUM 
amendment requesting Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC). 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  City has received a Preliminary Development Plan for a single family 
residential    development. 
 
TRACT SIZE:   Residential Development/Right of Way 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: vacant; 1 dwelling unit per 10 acres 
    PROPOSED: right of way; 1 dwelling unit per 3.5 acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 159



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future 
Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future 
land use designation of Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) to the property.  
 
Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of R-1A (Residential) to the property, 
consistent with the proposed Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) future land use designation.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to R-1A (Residential) is compatible to the adjacent zoning 
classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property 
owner is requesting the R-1A (Residential) zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property 
to have the potential to be single family residential and road access to create access to parcels to the south. 
The subject properties abut S.R. 429 to the east and the Stanton Ridge residential plat to the north, which 
is also owned by the Central Florida Expressway Authority.   City staff supports this change of zoning 
request subject to the construction of a highway interchange for S.R. 429 at Plymouth Sorrento Road. 
This change of zoning application is being processed in conjunction with a small scale future land use 
amendment for Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC).  The proposed use is consistent with the 
proposed future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible with the general character of 
surrounding zoning and uses.    
 
The change of zoning application covers approximately .302 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) Future Land Use designation and the City’s 

proposed Residential Zoning so long as dwelling units are not expanded on the existing land area 

comprising the subject site. Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use 

policies. School concurrency may occur at the time of a final development plan applicable to the subject 

property. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request is for a residential zoning classification that will only 

yield two residential units.  A rezoning that creates a net increase equal to nine or fewer residential units is 

exempt from School Capacity Enhancement.  School concurrency review may apply at the time a 

Preliminary Development Plan for residential development is submitted to the City.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 7, 2016. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 8, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
December 7, 2016 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
December 21, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

160



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change 
in zoning from County A-1(Agriculture) to R-1A (Residential) for the property owned by Central Florida 
Expressway Authority. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found that the proposed Change of 

Zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended 

adoption (7-0) of the Change of Zoning from “County” A-1(Agriculture) to “City” R-1A (Residential) for 

the property owned by Central Florida Expressway and located at Plymouth Sorrento Road. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2533 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2533. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

161



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AA Stanton Ridge residential plat owned by the 

Central Florida Expressway Authority. 

East (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 S.R. 429 

South (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 Single family residence 

West (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-1 Single family residence 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC 

COMPATIBILITY: The assigned zoning will be compatible to the residential zoned properties 

to the north and the subject property will have access through the Stanton 

Ridge residential plat, which is owned by the same property owner. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-1A (Residential) zoning is consistent with the City’s 

Residential Low Suburban (3.5 DU/AC) Future Land Use designation and 

with the character of the surrounding area. The R-1A (Residential) zoning 

classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within the 

proposed Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use Designation.   

Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted 

Future Land Use Designation. 

 
MIXED USE-EC DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,600 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 10,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 85 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. (From property line) 

 Rear: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Side: 20 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft.  
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels do comply with 
code requirements for the R-1A (Residential) district. 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 

 1.  Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways within a 

minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or districts shall 

provide a minimum five-foot bufferyard and six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall. 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses. 

Supporting infrastructure and public facilities of less than five acres. 

162



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
Central Florida Expressway Authority 

Property Owner 
0.302 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Residential Low Suburban (3.5 du/ac) 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” R-1A 

Parcel ID #s:   36-20-27-0000-00-126 & 36-20-27-0000-00-124 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

163



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

164



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

165



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

166



ORDINANCE NO. 2533 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” R-1A FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT PLYMOUTH SORRENTO RD., 

COMPRISING 0.302 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY CENTRAL 

FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 
Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed R-1A (3.5 du/ac) zoning has been found to be consistent with the City 
of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-1A (3.5 du/ac), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code.  
 
 Legal Description: COMM AT NE COR OF SE1/4 OF SEC 36-20-27 TH S02-14-21E 20.01 FT 
TO PT ON S LINE OF N 20 FT OF E 300 FT OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4 TH S89-27-24W 279.34 FT TO POB 
TH S00-27-45E 114.23 FT TH S89-31-59W 46.60 FT TH N52-36-26W 49.54 FT TO PT ON WLY LINE 
OF LANDS DESC IN OR 8943/2342 TH N37-23-29E 106.13 FT TO A PT ON AFORESAID S LINE TH 
N89-27-24E 20.58 FT TO POB and COMM AT NE COR OF SE1/4 OF SEC 36-20-27 T S89-28-38W 
278.71 FT ALONG N LINE OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4 TO POB TH S00-27-45E 20.1 FT TO PT ON S LINE 
OF N 20 FT OF E 300 FT OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4 TH S89-27-24W 20.58 FT TH S37-23-29W 106.13 FT 
ALONG ELY LINES OF LANDS DESC IN 6077/2248 TH N52-36-26W 29.99 FT TH N00-31-19W 85.41 
FT TO PT ON AFORESAID N LINE TH N89-28-38E 109.48 FT TO POB 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parcel I.D.: 36-20-27-0000-00-124 & 36-20-27-0000-00-126 

Contains: 0.302 +/- Acres 
167



ORDINANCE NO. 2533 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 
 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect 

of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the effective date of adoption of Ordinance 

No. 2533. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 21, 2016 

    December 11, 2016  

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

168



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2534 – Second Reading – Comp Plan Amendment – Capital Improvements Element – Legislative Kyle 
Wilkes 

  

169



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 2534 
X OTHER: Ordinance   Appendix 7-1, CIE 

  
SUBJECT:    ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE CITY’S FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

PLAN, AND INCORPORATING INTO THE CITY OF APOPKA, COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT. 

    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2534 - ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN AND 
INCORPORATE INTO THE CITY OF APOPKA COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ELEMENT. 

  
SUMMARY:  

 

Policy 1.4 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan’s Capital Improvements Element directs the City to update 

its five-year Capital Improvements Program (CIP) on an annual basis.   Exhibit “A” of ordinance 2534 

provides an updated list of infrastructure and other projects that are necessary to implement the City’s long-

range Comprehensive Plan.  Only large-scale capital projects necessary to support the Future Land Use, 

Transportation, Conservation, Infrastructure (i.e., potable water, sanitary sewer, reclaimed water, solid 

waste, stormwater), and Recreation Elements of the Comprehensive Plan are addressed within this five-

year Capital Improvements Program.  Other municipal services, such as Law Enforcement and Fire 

Protection, are not addressed in the Comprehensive Plan but are addressed in other capital improvement 

programs as part of the City’s fiscal management and budget process.   Annual review and preparation of 

the City’s budget will be consistent with the City’s Five-year Capital Improvement Program. 

 

This annual update of the five-year CIP is intended to schedule capital projects that are necessary to meet 

accepted levels of service (LOS), to maintain and repair failing facilities, and to provide additional 

infrastructure facilities and roads to meet demands generated by new growth and development.  The Five-

Year Capital Improvement Program only addresses major public facilities, infrastructure and road that are 

addressed within the City’s Comprehensive Plan – transportation, potable water, sanitary sewer, reclaimed 

water, recreation and parks, stormwater management and solid waste. 

 

The proposed annual update of the City’s Five-Year CIP incorporates capital facility maintenance and 

capacity upgrades for the Public Services and Recreation Departments.  Exhibit ‘A’ included with 

Ordinance No. 2534 includes the updated CIP to be incorporated as Appendix 7-1 of the Capital 

Improvements Element (CIE).  This appendix identifies the proposed improvements, proposed financial 

outlays for each project, as well as funding sources.    
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 

 
170



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 

FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN ANNUAL UPDATE – CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT 

AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

Furthermore, the City of Apopka submitted a Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program grant 

(FRDAP) for recreation improvements to Alonzo Williams and Kit Land Nelson parks. As part of the grant 

submittal requirements, the City indicated support for these proposed improvements, through approval of 

Resolutions 2015-14 & 2015-15.  The City was awarded the FRDAP grant, and as a condition of receiving 

funding disbursement, the City must incorporate the Kit Land Nelson and Alonzo Williams Park grant-

funded improvements into the Five-Year CIP as a requirement of the FRDAP grant funding process.  In 

addition, additional FRDAP grant funding has been requested for renovations and new construction at the 

Apopka Athletic Complex (AAC) in the amount of $50,000. These proposed improvements have been 

incorporated into this annual update, per the aforementioned FRDAP grant application requirements. 

 

Legislative changes in 2011 to Chapter 163, Florida Statues allow local governments to update their five-

year CIP without transmitting the amendment to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity prior to 

adoption, as is required for other policy amendments or Future Land Use amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  

December 7, 2016 – City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm) 

December 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Adoption Ad  

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annual update of the City of Apopka Five-Year 

Capital Improvements Plan to be incorporated into the Apopka Comprehensive Plan – Capital Improvements 

Element. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, recommended approval (5-1) of the annual 

update of the City of Apopka Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan to be incorporated into the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Improvements Element. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the first reading of Ordinance 2534, and 

held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2534. 

 

Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 

 

  

171



ORDINANCE NO. 2534 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; 

INCORPORATING THE ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE CITY’S FIVE YEAR 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2524; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, relative 

to the adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Capital Improvements Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Capital Improvements Element is hereby amended to incorporate annual updates to 

the Five Year Capital Improvements plan and replaced in its entirety by Exhibit “A” of this 

Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance.  

 

 SECTION III:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION IV: This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  

 

 

 

 

172



ORDINANCE NO. 2534 

PAGE 2 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

____ day of _____________, 20___. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: December 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                                                       

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 28, 2016 

       December 9, 2016  

 

173



EXHIBIT ‘A’ 

APPENDIX 7-1:  FIVE-YEAR SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - RECREATION 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Concession, bathrooms, 

building and sidewalks at 

NWRC 

General 

Fund 

 
$300,000 

 
    $300,000 

Parking Lot-NWRC Little 

League Fields 
 $510,000     $510,000 

Picnic Pavilions  $100,000  $100,000  $100,000 $300,000 

NWRC Ball Field 

Renovations 
$23,900 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000   $173,900 

Fitness Equipment for Kit 

Land Nelson Park (with 

grant) 

      $23,900 

Bleacher Covers Over 

Quad 3 
 $60,000     $60,000 

Tennis Court Resurfacing 

– NWRC 
   $50,000   $50,000 

Basketball Resurfacing – 

NWRC 
   $50,000   $50,000 

Lk. Ave. Park – 

Playground, Pavilion, 

Shade Structure 

  $350,000    $350,000 

Old Little League Fields 

New Park 
   $200,000   $200,000 

NWRC Scoreboards for 

(1) Quad 
 $30,000 $30,000    $60,000 

New ball fields (Baseball, 

soccer, etc.) 
  $2,200,000    $2,200,000 

Alonzo Williams Park 

Improvements 

(Contingent upon CDBG 

grant award) 

 

 $50,000     $50,000 

TOTAL GENERAL 

FUND 

 
$23,900 $1,100,000 $2,630,000 $450,000 $0 $100,000 $3,205,000 

 174



 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Recreation Splash Pad at 

NWRC 

Recreation 

Impact 

Fund 

    $400,000  $400,000 

Skate Park  $300,000     $300,000 

Playground at Apopka 

Athletic Complex (AAC) 
 $75,000     $75,000 

Splash Pad w/ Restrooms 

(Kit Land Nelson Park) 
$750,000      $750,000 

Park Lot - NWRC   $267,000 $865,000  $1,165,000 $2,297,000 

TOTAL RECREATION 

IMPACT FUND 
 $750,000 $375,000 $267,000 $865,000 $400,000 $1,650,000 $4,307,000 

Alonzo Williams 

Community Center Bldg. 
CDBG  $750,000     $750,000 

TOTAL CDBG   $750,000     $750,000 

Alonzo Williams Park1 

Renovations 

FRDAP 

Grant 

$28,000      $28,000 

Alonzo Williams Park 

New Construction2 
$22,000      $22,000 

Kit Land Nelson Park 

Renovations3 
$3,700      $3,700 

Kit Land Nelson Park 

New Construction4 
$42,500      $42,500 

AAC Renovations5  $17,000     $17,000 

AAC New Construction6  $33,000     $33,000 

Old Little League Fields 

New Park Construction 
   $200,000   $200,000 

TOTAL FRDAP 

GRANT FUNDS 

 
$96,200 $50,000 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $346,200 

                                                 
1 Resurfacing, irrigation, drinking fountain, picnic facilities 
2 Playground, security lighting 
3 Resurfacing, tennis court maintenance, drinking fountain, picnic facilities, miscellaneous maintenance 
4 New playground, bike rack, picnic facilities 
5 Restrooms, playground surface materials, baseball dugout shelters, drinking fountain & picnic facilities 
6 Playground, landscaping, picnic facilities 
 
 
 

175



Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Gymnasium/Aquatic 

Center (GO Bond) 

Other 

Funds 

 $20,000,000     $20,000,000 

Fitness Equipment for Kit 

Land Nelson 

Park/Outdoor Fitness 

Grant 

$9,560      $9,560 

TOTAL OTHER 

FUNDS 
 $9,560 $20,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,009,560 

 
APPENDIX 7-1 (CONT’D):  FIVE-YEAR SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS – PUBLIC SERVICES 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Downtown Parking Lot 

CRA 

$200,000      $200,000 

Downtown Park Lot 

Upgrades 
 $500,000    

 
$500,000 

TOTAL CRA FUND        $700,000 

Brick Streets, Repair & 

Restoration 

Street 

Improve- 

ment 

Fund 

 

 $500,000     $500,000 

Equipment (3412 Streets-

6400) 
$60,000 $60,000 $60,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $330,000 

New Sidewalk & Curb 

Construction (3412 

Streeets-6304) 

$50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $300,000 

Paving & Resurfacing 

(3412 Streets-6304) 
$600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000  $3,000,000 

8th Street Complex 

(Renovation/or Relocate) 

Split with 

3412/3513/3181) 

$300,000      $300,000 

TOTAL STREET 

IMPROVEMENT 

FUND 

 $1,010,000 $1,410,000 $710,000 $700,000 $700,000 $100,000 $4,630,000 

 

 176



 

 

  

Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

Source of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY 

 21-22 Totals 

6th Street 

Reconstruction & 

Downtown Related 

Street Improvements, 

Central Ave to US 

441 

Traffic 

Impact 

Fee 

$500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000   

 

$2,000,000 

Bradshaw Rd US 441 

Traffic Signal 
$400,000     

 
$400,000 

Peterson Rd (End of 

pavement to Hermit 

Smirth Rd) 2 lanes 

  $750,000   

 

$750,000 

Maine Ave, Martin St 

to Old Dixie Hwy (2 

lanes) 

   $1,000,000  

 

$1,000,000 

Martin St, Maine Ave 

between Park Ave 
   $1,600,000  

 
$1,600,000 

Marden Rd (Keene 

Rd to CR 437A) 2 

lanes, Urban Section 

Improvement 

$500,000 $500,000    

 

$100,000 

New Sidewalks $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000  $250,000 

Rogers Rd, Lester Rd 

to Ponkan Rd 
  $1,400,000   

 
$1,400,000 

Old Dixie 

(Hawthorne Ave to 

Schopke Lester Rd) 

turn lane, curb, gutter 

$1,000,000     

 

$1,000,000 

Sheeler 

Ave/Cleveland St 

Intersection 

Improvement (turn 

lanes/traffic light) 

 $500,000    

 

$500,000 

Plymouth Rd/Yothers 

Rd Intersection 

Improvements 

$500,000     

 

$500,000 

177



 

  

 

Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

 

Source of 

Funding 

 

FY  

16-17 

 

FY  

17-18 

 

FY  

18-19 

 

FY  

19-20 

 

FY  

20-21 

 

FY 

 21-22 

 

 

Totals 

Piedmont-Wekiwa 

Rd/Greenacres Rd 

(Traffic Light) 

Traffic 

Impact 

Fee 

(Cont’d) 

  $350,000   

 

$350,000 

TOTAL TRAFFIC 

IMPACT FUND 
 $2,950,000 $1,550,000 $3,550,000 $2,650,000 $50,000 $0 $9,850,000 

Drainage Upgrading 

– Citywide (6308) 

Stormwat

er 

Fund 

$350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $2,100,000 

TOTAL 

STORMWATER 

FUND 

 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $2,100,000 

Miscellaneous Water 

Mains (2) 

Water 

Impact 

Fund 

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $500,000 

TOTAL WATER 

IMPACT FUND 
 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $600,000 

Binion Rd RWM, 

IFAS to Ocoee 

Apopka Rd, 5,329 

LF,  

Reclaim 

Fund 

 

   $511,584   $511,584 

16” Golden Gem 

Reuse Station HSP 
    $6,500,000  $6,500,000 

Keene Rd RWM, 

Marden Rd to Ocoee 

Apopka Rd, 4,413 

LF, 36” 

$794,340      $794,340 

Kelly Park Rd RMW 

II, Jason Dwelley 

Pkwy to Rock 

Springs Rd 16”, 

8,801 LF (2) 

  $705,000    $705,000 

Kelly Park Rd RWM, 

Golden Gem Rd to 

Round Lake Rd 24” 

 $371,400     $371,400 

178



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

 

 

Source of 

Funding 

 

 

FY  

16-17 

 

 

FY  

17-18 

 

 

FY  

18-19 

 

 

FY  

19-20 

 

 

FY  

20-21 

 

 

FY 

 21-22 

 

 

Totals 

Miscellaneous RWM 

(5) 

Reclaim 

Fund 

(Cont’d) 

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $600,000 

Northwest Reclaim 

Water Pump Station, 

2 @ $3,000 

 $700,000     $700,000 

Northwest Reclaim 

Water Pond 2 & 3 
$250,000      $250,000 

Ocoee Apopka Rd, 

RWM, Harmon Rd to 

Alston Bay Blvd, 

2,500 LF, 30” 

$412,500      $412,500 

Ocoee Apopka Rd 

RWM, Keene Rd to 

Alston Bay Blvd, 

4,000 LF 30” 

$660,000      $600,000 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd RWM, Yothers 

Rd to Ponkan Rd, 

4,654 LF 24” (2) 

  $670,176     $670,176 

Ocoee Apopka Rd 

RWM, Keene Rd to 

Binion Rd, 3,500 LF 

30” 

 $308,000      $308,000 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd RWM, Ponkan 

Rd to Kelly Park Rd 

2,745 LF, 20” (2) 

  $645,000     $645,000 

TOTAL RELAIM 

FUND 
 $2,524,840 $2,486,576 $805,000 $611,584 $6,600,000 $100,000 $13,128,000 

179



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Grossenbacher WTP, 

Replace Well 

Water 

Impact 

Fee 

   $910,000   $910,000 

Haas Rd WM, Mt. 

Plymouth Rd to 

Round Lake Rd, 

22,708 LF 12” (1) 

   $1,634,976   $1,634,976 

Kelly Park Rd WM, 

Golden Gem Rd to 

Round Lake Rd, 

4,035 LF 16” (1) 

 $387,360     $387,360 

Kelly Park Rd WM, 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd to Golden Gem, 

6,672 LF 12” (1) 

$400,320      $400,320 

Miscellaneous Water 

Mains (2) 
$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $600,000 

Mt. Plymouth Water 

Plant (Well #1) 

modifications and 

improvements 

$700,000      $700,000 

Mt. Plymouth Water 

Plant (Well #4) 

modifications and 

improvements 

 $900,000     $900,000 

NW WTP (1 MG 

Storage Tank) (1) 
  $850,000    $850,000 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd WM Ponkan Rd 

to Kelly Park Rd, 

10,720 LF 16” (1) 

  $1,030,000    $1,030,000 

180



 Comprehensive 

Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Plymouth Sorrento 

Rd WM, Yothers Rd 

to Ponkan Rd, 5,423 

LF 12” (1) 

Water 

Impact 

Fund 

(Cont’d) 

$390,456      $390,456 

Plymouth Regional 

Water Plant, 

modifications and 

improvements Wells 

#1 & 2 

 $900,000     $900,000 

Ponkan Rd, Ponkan 

Pines to Golden 

Gem 8,271 LF 12” 

 $595,572     $595,572 

Sheeler Oaks WTP 

65T .75 MG (1) 
 $750,000     $750,000 

Southwest Water 

Plant (1) 
    $4,500,000  $4,500,000 

US 441 WM, Roger 

Williams Rd to 

Sheeler Rd (1) 

  $240,000    $240,000 

TOTAL WATER 

IMPACT FUND 

 
$1,590,776 $2,245,572 $2,220,000 $2,644,976 $4,600,000 $100,000 $13,401,324 

Martin’s Pond 

Improvements 

Other 

Funds 

(TBD) 

      TBD 

TOTAL OTHER 

FUNDS 

 
      TBD 

181



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2535 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial     Kyle 
Wilkes  

  

182



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Uses Map 
    Ordinance No.2535 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2535 – CHANGE OF ZONING – JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY 
    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2535 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

JACK & JOYCE CRAVEY - FROM “COUNTY: A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” AG 
(AGRICULTURE) (PARCEL ID NOS. 24-20-27-0000-00-056; 24-20-27-0000-00-
112). 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Jack & Joyce Cravey 
 
LOCATION: West of Phils Lane, east of Golden Gem Road (3815 Phils Ln. and 3827 

Hideaway Road) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Manufactured home 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 ac) (Note: This change of zoning amendment is 

being processed along with a large scale future land use amendment. 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family residential or manufactured home  
 
 
TRACT SIZE:   15.04 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 Unit 
    PROPOSED: 3 Units 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief   

183



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on May 4, 

2016, through adoption of Ordinance 2495. 

 

The applicant requests a change of zoning to assign an AG (Agriculture) zoning classification to the 

properties.  The requested AG zoning classification compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and 

with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property owner is requesting 

the AG zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property for existing manufactured and 

proposed single-family and/or manufactured home residences.  The applicant intends to split the lot for two 

residences.  This use is consistent with the existing future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible 

with the general character of surrounding zoning and uses. 

 

The change of zoning application covers approximately 15.04 acres.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed AG Zoning 

classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request for a change of zoning to AG (Agriculture) will result in 

a number of potential units that will be considered de minimus; therefore, school capacity determination is 

not required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 16, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 

 

  

184



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed change of zoning consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, 

and recommends adoption of the change in zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG (Agriculture) 

for the property owned by Jack & Joyce Cravey. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found the proposed change of zoning 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code and compatible with the character of the 

surrounding area, and recommended adoption of the change in zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” 

AG (Agriculture) for the property owned by Jack & Joyce Cravey, and subject to City Council adopting a 

Future Land Use Designation of “Rural Settlement” for this property. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2535 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2535. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

185



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0-1 du/10) A-1 Limited Access R-O-W (SR 429) 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-2 Limited Access R-O-W (SR 429) 

South (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-2 Vacant 

West (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) AG Vacant 

 

LAND USE &  

TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property has access to local roadways (Phils Lane and 

Hideaway Lane).   

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed I-1 zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural Settlement 

(0-1 du/5 ac) Future Land Use designation and with the character of the 

surrounding area and future proposed development. The AG zoning 

classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within 

the Rural Settlement Future Land Use designation.   Development Plans 

shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use 

Designation. 

 

AG DISTRICT 

REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

400 sq. ft. (Mobile home) 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 25 ft. 

 Side: 25 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with 

code requirements for the AG district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and 

other similar uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property lines.  

Apiaries shall be located 200 feet from any property line.  All other yard 

setbacks shall be 25 feet from the property line.  

 

  186



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Single-family dwellings, including mobile homes, and their customary 

accessory structures and uses in accordance with article VII of this 

Code, Apiaries, crop and animal production (and the buildings and 

structures necessary to support such production).  Livestock barns and 

stables, kennels, commercial wholesale foliage plant production 

nursery, kennels, office building and accessory buildings in conjunction 

with commercial agriculture uses for packing, shopping, and storage 

purposes. 

  

187



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 
Jack & Joyce Cravey 

Property Owner 
15.04 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural (0 – 1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 ac)  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
To: “City” AG 

Parcel ID #s:   24-20-27-0000-00-056 & 24-20-27-0000-00-112 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

188



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 189



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 190



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 
 

  

191



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2535 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF PHILS 

LANE, EAST OF GOLDEN GEM ROAD, COMPRISING 15.04 ACRES MORE 

OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of 
the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified 
in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed AG (Agriculture) zoning has been found to be consistent with the 
City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in 
the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby AG (Agriculture), as defined in the Apopka Land Development 
Code.  
 
 Legal Description: 
 

 
 

Parcel I.D.s: 24-20-27-0000-00-056; 24-20-27-0000-00-112 

Contains: 15.04 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City 

of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

192



ORDINANCE NO. 2535 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force 

or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the effective date of adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2499. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 21, 2016 

    December 11, 2016  

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

193



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Ordinance No. 2536 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative  
 Elizabeth Florence 

  

194



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2536 
  
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2536 – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

– MARSHALL HOWARD 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2536 – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – MARSHALL HOWARD – FROM RESIDENTIAL 

HIGH (0-15 DU/AC) TO COMMERCIAL (MAX. 0.25 FAR) (PARCEL ID NO. 13-

21-28-5300-03-100. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Marshall Howard c/o Khaled Akkawi 
 
LOCATION: 1351 Tropical Circle (generally located north of Kenneth Street, east of S 

Orange Blossom Trail). 
 
EXISTING USE:  Mobile Home Park (Tropicana Mobile Home Park) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: R-3 (Residential) 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City” C-1 (Retail Commercial) (Note: this Future Land Use Map 

amendment request is being processed along with a request to change the 
Zoning Map designation from R-3 (Residential) to C-1 (Retail Commercial). 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Expansion of commercial space for the Shoot Straight business 
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.8 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 58 residential units 
    PROPOSED: 41,382 Sq. Ft.   
FUNDING SOURCE:   
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

195



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 16, 
1992, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 751.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment 
is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres 
are eligible to be processed as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State 
planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a C-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning category to the Property is being processed in 
conjunction with this future land use amendment request for an Industrial designation.  The FLUM 
amendment application covers approximately 3.8 acres and the current use of the property is for a mobile 
home park.  After a Future Land Use Designation and Zoning Category are assigned to the subject property, 
property owner intends to incorporate them into the abutting Shoot Straight C-1 (Retail Commercial) to the 
west, which is consistent with the allowable uses within the C-1 zoning district.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing use of a mobile home park is a legal, non-
conforming use with the current land use and zoning categories.  However, the proposed use of the property 
is consistent with the proposed Commercial Future Land Use designation and the proposed C-1 Zoning 
designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Future Land Use Amendment represents a change to a 
non-residential designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and  recommends adoption of the change in Future Land Use Residential High (0-15 du/ac) to 
Commercial (0.25 FAR) for the property owned by Marshall Howard. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found that the proposed Small Scale 
Future Land Use Amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 
recommended adoption of the Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment from Residential High (0 - 15 
du/ac) to Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) for the properties owned Marshall Howard. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2536 
and held it over for second reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2536. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

196



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Vacant 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 R-O-W, Retail & Billboard 

West (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Retail & Gun Range (Shoot Straight) 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is commercial and residential.  Lands to 
the east have single-family residential, which lands to the north are vacant. Properties to the south and west 
have a Future Land Use Designation of Commercial.   The properties to the south contain retail uses and a 
billboard; abutting properties to the west are used presently for the Shoot Straight indoor gun range and 
firearm sales.  The proposed future land use request is consistent with the adjacent future land use 
designations, as well as consistent with uses in the surrounding area. 
 

 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA ) 

agreement on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Core Area” of the JPA.  The 

proposed FLUM Amendment from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (10 du/ac) to City 

“Industrial” is consistent with the intent of the Core Area JPA. 

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 

adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 

adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 

reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 

Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 

following policies: 

 

• Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

• Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

• Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

 The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

shows that there are karst features on the subject property. 

 

Analysis of the character of the Property:  The subject property has access to a city residential roadway 

(Kenneth Street), which has access to S Orange Blossom Trail. A mobile home park is located on the subject 

property.  The vegetative communities present are urban; the soils present are St. Lucie and Zolfo-Urban 

Land Complex. 

  

197



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 

Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: This property was 

annexed into the City on August 23, 1983. The Orange County Comprehensive Plan anticipated this 

property being developed with potential of up to fifty-seven residential units.  Because this proposed land 

use change is to a non-residential development, this amendment will impact the population projections in 

the City's Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 CALCULATIONS: 

 

  ADOPTED (City designation): 57 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 285 persons 

  PROPOSED (City designation): 0 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 0 persons 
 

 Housing Needs:  Within the city limits and within the vicinity of this Property, sufficient 

undeveloped lands are assigned residential land use designations.  These undeveloped residential properties 

can adequately accommodate future population anticipated to occur within the city limits. 

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 

Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.   

 

1.  Roadways.  The subject property has access to Kenneth St, which intersects with S Orange 

Blossom Tr (US 441).   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This 

site is less than ten acres and is already developed and platted.  A habitat study will not be required at the 

time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 

Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  11,172  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   6,207  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 

None 

 

198



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 

 177 GPD/Capita; 177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

 City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    25878  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  8276 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  No           
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  628  lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  83  lbs./day/1000 SF 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 

 

199



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: NO 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: Lake Page 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.456 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 
  

200



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 

 
Marshall Howard 

3.8 +/- Acres 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Residential High (0-15 du/ac) 
To: Commercial (0.25 max FAR) 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: R-3 (Residential) 

To: C-1 (Retail Commercial) 
Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-5300-03-100 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

201



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

202



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

203



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

204



ORDINANCE NO. 2536 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM RESIDENTIAL HIGH (0-15 
DU/AC) TO COMMERCIAL (MAX 0.25), FOR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1351 TROPICANA CIRCLE, COMPRISING 
3.8 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY MARSHALL HOWARD; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2524 on November 16, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2524, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from Residential High (0-15 du/ac) to Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR), for 
certain real property located at 1351 Tropicana Circle, comprising 3.8 acres more or less, (Parcel 
No. 13-21-28-5300-03-100); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 

205



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2536 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2016. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 7, 2016 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
December 21, 2016 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: October 28, 2016 

      December 9, 2016 

 

206



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2536 

 
 

Marshall Howard 
3.8 +/- Acres 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Residential High (0-15 du/ac) 

To: Commercial (0.25 max FAR) 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: R-3 (Residential) 
To: C-1 (Retail Commercial) 

Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-5300-03-100 
 

 

207



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

10. Ordinance No. 2537 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial    
 Elizabeth Florence 

  

208



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No.2537 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2537 – CHANGE OF ZONING – MARSHALL HOWARD 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2537 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

MARSHALL HOWARD, FROM R-3 RESIDENTIAL) TO C-1 

COMMERCIAL; (PARCEL I.D. NO. 13-21-28-5300-03-100. 
  
SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Marshall Howard c/o Khaled Akkawi 
 
LOCATION: 1351 Tropical Circle (generally located north of Kenneth Street, east of S 

Orange Blossom Trail). 
 
EXISTING USE:  Mobile Home Park (Tropicana Mobile Home Park) 
 
PROPOSED  
FLUM DESIGNATION: Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) (NOTE: This change of zoning application is 

being processed in conjunction with a small scale FLUM amendment 
requesting Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR). 

 
CURRENT ZONING: R-3 (Residential)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Expansion of Shoot Straight indoor gun range & firearm sales (stocking space) 
 
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.8 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 58 Units 
    PROPOSED: 41,382 Sq. Ft. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 

209



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 

16, 1992 through the adoption of Ordinance No. 751. 

 

The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of C-1 (Retail Commercial) to the 

property, consistent with the proposed Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) future land use designation.  

 

A request to assign a change of zoning to C-1 (Retail) is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications 

and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property owner is 

requesting the C-1 (Retail Commercial) zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property for 

the expansion of the Shoot Straight indoor gun range and firearm sales immediately adjacent to the west 

of the subject site. The subject properties abut a limited access highway (S.R. 414) with a planned 

interchange at Marden Road.  This change of zoning application is being processed in conjunction with a 

small scale future land use amendment for Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR).  The proposed use is consistent 

with the proposed future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible with the general character of 

surrounding zoning and uses (see Land Use & Traffic Compatibility below). 

 

The change of zoning application covers approximately 3.8 acres.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed 

C-1 (Retail Commercial) Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by 

the Future Land Use policies.  

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:   The request is for a non-residential zoning classification; therefore, 

a school capacity enhancement agreement is not required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

210



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed change of zoning amendment consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
area, and recommends adoption of the change in zoning from R-3 (Residential) to C-1 (Retail 
Commercial) for the property owned by Marshall Howard. 
 
The Planning Commission at its meeting on November 14, 2016, recommended approval (6-0) of the 
Change of Zoning from R-3 (Residential) to C-1 (Retail Commercial) for property owned by Marshall 
Howard located at 1351 Tropical Circle, subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2537 
and held it over for second reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2537. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

211



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Vacant 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 R-O-W, Retail & Billboard 

West (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Retail & Gun Range (Shoot Straight) 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC 

COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Kenneth 

Street), which has access to S Orange Blossom Trail. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed C-1 (Retail Commercial) zoning is consistent with the City’s 

Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) Future Land Use designation and with the 

character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. The C-

1 (Retail Commercial) zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning 

categories allowed within the proposed Commercial Future Land Use 

Designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in 

the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

C-1 DISTRICT 

REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: NA 

Minimum Site Area: 10,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 10 ft. (From property line) 

 Rear: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 15 ft.  

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with code 

requirements for the C-1 (Retail Commercial) district. 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 

1. Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum ten-

foot landscaped bufferyard.  

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or districts shall 

provide a minimum six-foot-high masonry wall within a ten-foot 

landscaped bufferyard. 

3. Areas adjacent to nonresidential uses or districts shall provide a 

minimum five-foot landscaped bufferyard.  

 

212



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Any nonresidential permitted use in the PO/I or CN districts.  Retail 

establishments, banks, savings and loan and other financial institutions. 

Bowling alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar amusement 

centers, provided such activities and facilities are enclosed within a sound-

proof building.  Churches and schools, day nurseries, kindergartens and 

other child care centers. Restaurants, hotels/motels, bed and breakfast 

facilities and other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses 

permitted herein which adhere to the intents of the district and which are not 

prohibited. 

213



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 
Marshall Howard 

3.8 +/- Acres 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Residential High (0-15 du/ac) 
To: Commercial (0.25 max FAR) 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: R-3 (Residential) 

To: C-1 (Retail Commercial) 
Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-5300-03-100 

 
VICINITY MAP 

 

Subject 

Property

 

214



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

215



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

216



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
MARSHALL HOWARD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 
 
 
 

EXISTING USES 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
 

217



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2537 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) TO C-1 (RETAIL 

COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED EAST OF ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, NORTH OF 

KENNETH STREET, COMPRISING 3.8 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 

OWNED BY MARSHALL HOWARD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS 

TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed C-1 (Retail Commercial) zoning has been found to be consistent 
with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby C-1 (Retail Commercial), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

F B LYNCHS SUB H/88 LOTS 10 THROUGH 16 & UNPLATTED PORTION 

LYING N OF SAID LOTS BLK C Parcel I.D: 13-21-28-5300-01-100 

Contains: 3.8 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

218



ORDINANCE NO. 2537 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 
 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2536. 
 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 28, 2016  

December 9, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

219



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

11. Ordinance No. 2538 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative   Kyle 
Wilkes 

  

220



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
X OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Uses Map 
    Ordinance No. 2538 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2538 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL 
ENTERPRISES, LLC 

    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2538 – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, 
LLC – FROM “COUNTY” LOW-MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-10 
DU/AC) TO “CITY” INDUSTRIAL (MAX. 0.6 FAR) (PARCEL ID NOS. 09-21-
28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-0868-01-240). 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper 
 
LOCATION: 202 South Hawthorne Ave & 300 West 2nd Street (South of West 2nd Street, 

west of South Hawthorne Avenue, and south of West Orange Blossom 
Trail/CSX Railroad Line) 

 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) (Note: this Future Land Use Map 

amendment request is being processed along with a request to change the 
Zoning Map designation from “County” R-2 (ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted 
Industrial). 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Industrial, Commercial or Office Development consistent with I-1 

(Restricted Industrial) zoning 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.74 +/- acre 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:   2 Residential Units (subject properties are platted as 2 lots) 
    PROPOSED:  10,977 Sq. Ft.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

221



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 2, 

2015, through the adoption of Ordinances No. 241 and 2462.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use 

Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less 

than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require 

review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign an I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning category to the Property is being processed in 

conjunction with this future land use amendment request for an Industrial designation.  The FLUM 

amendment application covers approximately 0.74 acres, exceeding the minimum development site area of 

15,000 sq. ft. Abutting lands to the north, west and south are already owned by the same property owner as 

the applicant and assigned an Industrial FLUM designation.  After a Future Land Use Designation and 

Zoning Category are assigned to the subject property, property owner intends to incorporate them into the 

abutting industrial park under the same ownership.  The property owner intends to use the subject site for 

industrial, commercial or office development consistent with Industrial FLUM designation and I-1 zoning 

category.    

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Industrial Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed I-1 Zoning designation.  Site 

development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Future Land Use Amendment represents a change to a 

non-residential designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

  

222



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from “County” Low-Medium Density 

Residential (0-10 du/ac) to “City” Industrial (0.6 FAR) for the property owned by Property Industrial 

Enterprises, LLC, and located at 202 South Hawthorne Avenue and 300 West 2nd Street. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2106, found that the future land use 

amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommended adoption of the small scale future 

land use amendment from “County” Low Medium Residential (0-10 du/ac) to “City” Industrial (max 0.60 

FAR), for properties owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC and located at 202 South Hawthorne 

Avenue and 300 West 2nd Street. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2538 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2538. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

                                                                                                                                                                          

 

  

223



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial\railroad tracks 

East (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 Hawthorne Ave. & Church 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial 

 
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is industrial and commercial.  Lands on 
the east side of Hawthorne Avenue are assigned a Commercial FLUM designation.  A Future Land Use 
Designation of Industrial (0.6 FAR) is assigned to the properties on the north, south and west sides, making 
the proposed Future Land Use Designation of Industrial (0.6 FAR) compatible with adjacent land uses and 
the general character of the surrounding area. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA ) 
agreement on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Western Expressway Corridor 
Area” of the JPA.  The proposed FLUM Amendment from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (10 
du/ac) to City “Industrial” is consistent with the intent of the Western Expressway Corridor Area JPA. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 
following policies: 
 

• Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
• Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
• Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
 The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
shows that there are no karst features currently known to occur on the subject property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The subject property has access to a city collector roadway 
(Hawthorne Avenue) and a freight rail line.  A single family residence is located on each of the subject lots.  
The vegetative communities present are urban; the soils present are St. Lucie and Zolfo-Urban Land 
Complex. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: This property was 
annexed into the City on October 1, 2014. The Orange County Comprehensive Plan anticipated this property 
being developed with potential of up to sixty residential units.  Because this proposed land use change 
accommodates non-residential development, this amendment will not impact the population projections in 
the City's Comprehensive Plan. 

224



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
 
 

 CALCULATIONS: 
 ADOPTED (County designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 5 persons 
 PROPOSED (City designation): 0 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 0 persons 
 

 Housing Needs:  Within the city limits and within the vicinity of this Property, sufficient 
undeveloped lands are assigned residential land use designations.  These undeveloped residential properties 
can adequately accommodate future population anticipated to occur within the city limits. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.   
 

1.  Roadways.  The subject property has access to Hawthorne Avenue, which is a designated collector 
road.  Hawthorne Avenue intersects with U.S. 441 and 4th Street.  A limited access highway (S.R. 
429/S.R. 451) is a mile driving distance from the subject property. 

 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This 
site is less than ten acres and is already developed and platted.  A habitat study will not be required at the 
time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPD/Capita; 
 81 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  392  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   1647  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 
 

Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 
 177 GPD/Capita;  177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    908  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2195 GPD 

225



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  No           

 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  20  lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  22  lbs./day/1000 SF 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: No 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 
 

226



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.063 AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.015 AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 

  

227



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 
Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 

0.74 +/- Acre 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 2 residential dwelling units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 10,977 Sq. Ft. 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) 
To: “City” Industrial (0.30 FAR) 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 

To: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) 

Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-240 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

  

Subject 

Properties 

228



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

  

229



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

230



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 
 

  

231



ORDINANCE NO. 2538 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW-MEDIUM 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-10 DU/AC) TO “CITY” INDUSTRIAL (MAX 
0.6), FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 202 S 
HAWTHORNE  AVE AND 300 W 2ND STREET, COMPRISING 0.74 
ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL 
ENTERPRISES LLC; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2524 on November 16, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2524, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) to “City” 
Industrial (Max. 0.6 FAR), for certain real property located at 202 South Hawthorne Ave & 300 W 
West 2nd Street, comprising 0.74 acres more or less, (Parcel No. 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-
28-0868-01-240); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 

232



 

 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2538 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2016. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 7, 2016 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
December 21, 2016 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: October 28, 2016 

      December 9, 2016 

 

233



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2538 

 
 

Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
0.74 +/- Acre 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 2 residential dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 10,977 Sq. Ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) 

To: “City” Industrial (0.60 FAR) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 

To: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) 
Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-240 

 
 

234



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

12. Ordinance No. 2539 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial     Kyle 
Wilkes  

  

235



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No.2539 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2539 – CHANGE OF ZONING – PROPERTY 

INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2539 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC, FROM “COUNTY” R-2 

(ZIP) TO “CITY” I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL); (PARCEL I.D. NOS. 

09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-240. 
  
SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper 
 
LOCATION: 202 S Hawthorne Street & 300 W 2nd Street 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Residential 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: Industrial (max 0.60 FAR) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Industrial, Commercial or Office Development consistent with I-1 

(Restricted Industrial) zoning 
 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.74 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  2 Residential Units (subject properties are platted as two lots) 
PROPOSED:   14,505 Sq. Ft. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 

236



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on December 
2, 2015, through the adoption of Ordinances No. 2461 and 2462.   
 
The proposed change of zoning is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Presently, the subject property 
has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning 
classification of I-1 (Restricted Industrial) to the property.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to I-1 (Restricted Industrial) is compatible to the adjacent zoning 
classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property 
owner is requesting the I-1 zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property for light 
industrial, commercial or office development allowed under the I-1 zoning district.  This use is consistent 
with the proposed Industrial Future Land Use Designation, proposed zoning district and compatible with 
the general character of surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
The change of zoning application covers approximately 0.74 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 
Industrial (max 0.60 FAR) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed I-1 (Restricted 
Industrial) Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future 
Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning district and, 
therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

 

237



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and the Land Development Code recommends adoption of the change in Zoning from “County” R-2 

(ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial), subject to the adoption of the associated small scale future land 

use amendment, for the property owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2016, found the change of zoning to “City” 

I-1 (Restricted Industrial) consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 

recommended adoption (6-0); subject to adoption of the Proposed Future Land Use Designation.  

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2539 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2539. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

238



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial\railroad tracks 

East (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-2 Hawthorne Ave. & Church 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (W 2nd 

Street) and a city minor collector (S Hawthorne Avenue).  The 
proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning district is consistent and 
compatible with the adjacent zoning classifications and uses within the 
surrounding area. Properties owned by the same owner to the, north, 
west and south are zoned I-1, and properties to the east, across S 
Hawthorne Ave., are used for an institutional use (church) and zoned 
C-3 (Wholesale Commercial).  

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed I-1 zoning is consistent with the City’s Industrial (max 

0.60 FAR) Future Land Use designation and with the character of the 
surrounding area and future proposed development. The I-1 zoning 
classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within 
the Industrial Land Use category.   Development Plans shall not exceed 
the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
I-1 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: NA 

Minimum Site Area: 15,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 10 ft. (30 ft. to residential)  

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 

 
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with 
code requirements for the I-1 district. 

 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: 1. Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum 

25-foot landscaped bufferyard.  
 
 2. Areas adjacent to agricultural uses or districts shall provide a 

minimum of ten feet abutting the property line with landscaping 
and a six-foot-high masonry wall. 

 
 

239



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
 3.    Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six 

foot-high masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped 
bufferyard. 

              
       4.   Industrial uses adjacent to nonresidential, nonindustrial uses or 

districts shall provide one of the following: 
 

        a.      A minimum of 25 feet abutting the property with landscaping 
and an earth berm, measuring three feet with a 3:1 slope; or 

        b.     A minimum six-foot-high masonry wall within a minimum of 
ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 
ALLOWABLE  
USES: Any C-3 Commercial District permitted use and wholesale distribution, 

storage and light manufacturing, including: manufacture and processing of 

novelties, bakery and confectionary products, garments, scientific, 

electrical, instruments or equipment.  Bus, cab and truck repair.  Dyeing, 

dry cleaning and laundering. Machinery sales and machine shops. Cold 

storage and frozen food lockers.  All other uses not prohibited, and similar 

and compatible to those within the I-1 Restricted Industrial Zoning District. 

240



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 
Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 

0.74 +/- Acre 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 2 residential dwelling units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 10,977 Sq. Ft. 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) 
To: “City” Industrial (0.30 FAR) 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 

To: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) 

Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-240 

 
VICINITY MAP 

 

SUBJECT 

PROPERTIES 

241



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

242



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

243



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 
 
 
 

EXISTING USES 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
 

244



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2539 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-2 (ZIP) TO I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) 

FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF 

HAWTHORNE AVENUE, SOUTH OF 2ND STREET, COMPRISING 0.74 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL 

ENTERPRISES, LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby C-1 (Retail Commercial), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

BRADSHAW AND THOMPSONS ADDITION TO APOPKA CITY B/25 LOT 

23 (LESS RR R/W) BLK A; AND BRADSHAW AND THOMPSONS 

ADDITION TO APOPKA CITY B/25 LOT 24 BLK A (LESS R/W 

Parcel I.D: 09-21-28-0868-01-230 & 09-21-28-0868-01-234 

Contains: 0.74 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

245



ORDINANCE NO. 2539 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2538. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 28, 2016  

December 9, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

246



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

13. Ordinance No. 2540 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial    
 Elizabeth Florence 

  

247



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning 

    Adjacent Uses 

    Existing Uses 

    Ordinance No. 2540 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2540 – CHANGE OF ZONING – SOUTH PASS LLC 
    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2540 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

SOUTH PASS LLC, FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (RURAL) TO “CITY” RCE-1 
(RESIDENTIAL) (PARCEL I.D. NO. 29-20-28-0000-00-034). 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: South Pass LLC 
 
LOCATION: 2228 Vick Rd. 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT LAND USE: Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family residential 
 
TRACT SIZE:   4.77 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 Dwelling Unit 
    PROPOSED: 4 Dwelling Units 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 248



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning 

category.  The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of RCE-1 (Residential 

Country Estates 1) to the property.  

 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on August 6, 2008, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2042.   

 

A request to assign a change of zoning to RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1) is compatible to the 

adjacent zoning classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  

The property owner is requesting the RCE-1 zoning classification to split the lot and develop two single-

family residences.  The proposed use is consistent with the existing Residential Low Suburban FLUM 

designation and compatible with the general character of surrounding zoning and uses.   

 

The change of zoning application covers approximately 4.77 +/- acres.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

proposed Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed 

RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1) Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity 

allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed change of zoning will not result in additional units 

above the number required for school capacity determination and, therefore, is considered de minimus.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 14, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 14, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 21, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 28, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 

  

249



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan, Land Development Code and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends 

approval of the change in zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1 (Residential County Estates 1) 

for the property owned by South Pass LLC and located at 2228 Vick Road.  

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 14, 2106, found the proposed rezoning consistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code and recommended adoption of the change of 

zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1), for property owned by 

South Pass LLC and located at 2228 Vick Road. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2540 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2540. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

250



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Institutional/Public Use PO/I City Retention Pond 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) PUD Spring Ridge HOA easement and open space 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) PUD Single-family homes (Spring Ridge subdivision 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a city collector (Vick Rd).  

The proposed RCE-1 zoning district is consistent with the existing 
Future Land Use designation, and is compatible with the zoning and uses 
in the surrounding area.  The subject property is adjacent to R-O-W 
(Vick Rd.) and vacant “County” A-1 rural zoning to the east, and PUD 
zoning and the Spring Ridge subdivision to the west.  The subject parcel 
abuts a City retention pond with PO/I zoning to the north and a Spring 
Ridge HOA easement and retention pond to the south.  The proposed 
RCE-1 zoning classification, which requires a minimum lot size of one 
(1) acre, as well as the proposed use for two single-family residences 
would serve as a transition from the rural zoning to the east and single-
family residential to the west. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates 1) zoning is 

consistent with the existing Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) 
Future Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding 
area and future proposed development. The proposed RCE-1 
(Residential Country Estates 1) zoning classification is one of the 
acceptable zoning categories allowed within the Residential Low Future 
Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density 
allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
RCE-1 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 2,200 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 1 acre 

Minimum Lot Width 130 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 35 ft. 

 Rear: 30 ft. 

 Side: 15 ft. 

 Corner 35 ft. 

 
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcel complies with 
code requirements for the RCE-1 zoning district. 

 
 
 

251



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: 1. Developments shall have a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, 
erected inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  
Landscape materials shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on 
the exterior of the buffer wall.  The city may allow the developer 
the option to provide up to 50 percent of the buffer wall length in a 
six-foot wrought iron fence between solid columns.  The columns 
shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall have a stone, brick 
or decorative block finish.  Where wrought iron is used, additional 
landscape materials and irrigation may be required.  This will be 
determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 

 
 2. Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 

minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot high brick, 
stone or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable 
alternatives are submitted for approval. 

 
 
ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures 

and uses in accordance with article VII of this code. Guest/granny 

quarters in accordance with article VII of this code. 

  

252



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 
South Pass LLC 

4.77 +/- Acres 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
To: “City” RCE-1 (Residential) 

Parcel ID #: 29-20-28-0000-00-034 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT 

PROPERTY 

253



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 254



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 255



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 
SOUTH PASS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 
 

  

256



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2540 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” RCE-1 

(RESIDENTIAL COUNTRY ESTATES) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2228 VICK ROAD, COMPRISING 4.77 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY SOUTH PASS, LLC; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates) zoning has been found to 
be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby C-1 (Retail Commercial), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

S 298 FT OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4 & E 60 FT OF W1/2 SAID NE1/4 OF 
SE1/4 (LESS E 30 FT FOR RD R/W) & (LESS PT TAKEN ON E FOR R/W PER 
OR 4950/2909) OF SEC 29-20-28 
Parcel I.D: 29-20-28-0000-00-034 

Contains: 4.77 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

257



ORDINANCE NO. 2540 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 28, 2016  

December 9, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 21, 2016 

258



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

14. Ordinance No. 2541 – Second Reading – Right-of-Way Vacate – Quasi-Judicial     David 
Moon 

  

259



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 21 , 2016 

X  PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

X  OTHER: Vacate   Utility Letters 

    Ordinance No. 2541 

    Survey/Legal Description 

Development Agreement 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2541  - MID FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES, 

LTD - VACATING  PORTIONS OF UNNAMED RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2541 - MID FLORIDA 

FREEZER WAREHOUSES, LTD – VACATING PORTIONS OF 

UNNAMED RIGHT-OF-WAY. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
APPLICANT:              Mid Florida Freezer Warehouses, LTD 
 
LOCATION:              South of General Electric Road and East of Hermit Smith Road  
 
LAND USE:              Right of Way 
 
ZONING:   Right of Way 
 
EXISTING USE:  Unimproved Right of Way 
 
AREA TO  
BE VACATED:     2.11 +/- Acres (92,097 +/- Sq. Ft.) 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 
North - City Industrial I-1 Vacant Land 
East - City Industrial       I-1 Vacant Land 

South - City Industrial I-1 Vacant Land 
West - City Industrial  I-1 Vacant Land 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 

 260



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 

MID FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES, LTD – VACATE  

PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant is seeking to vacate a two sections of unimproved right-of-

way located east of Hermit Smith Road and south of General Electric Road.   This right-of-way vacate was 

authorized by City Council through the Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park Development Agreement, which 

was approved by City Council at its meeting held on October 5, 2016.  The portions of right-of-way that 

will be vacated is described within the legal description.  Vacating this portion of the road right-of-way will 

not affect any abutting property owners. 

 

Our Public Services department has evaluated the site and has agreed to the vacate request. Additionally, 

all local utility providers have been contacted by the applicant and have provided the letters received from 

each utility provider indicating no objection to this vacate request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

December 7, 2016 - City Council - 1st Reading (1:30 p.m.) 

December 21, 2016 - City Council - 2nd Reading (7:00 p.m.) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

November 18, 2016 - Public Hearing Notice 

December 9, 2016 - Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the request to vacate portions of unnamed 
right-of-way as described in the legal descriptions. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on December 7, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2541 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 21, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2541. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
  

261



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 

MID FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES, LTD – VACATE  

PAGE 3 

 

PROPOSED VACATE PORTIONS OF UNNAMED RIGHT OF WAY  

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
                                                                                                                                                        
 

 

 

 

 

 
  Vacate Area 
   
    

262



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 21, 2016 

MID FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES, LTD – VACATE  

PAGE 4 

 

                                                 AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

263



264



265



266



267



ORDINANCE NO. 2541 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE A 
PORTION OF  A RIGHT-OF-WAY; LOCATED EAST OF HERMIT 
SMITH ROAD AND SOUTH OF GENERAL ELECTRIC ROAD; IN 
SECTION 01, TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 27 OF ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 
SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has been 
filed by Mid Florida Freezer Warehouses, LTD to vacate, abandon, discontinue, renounce and 
disclaim a portion of unnamed right of way as shown in Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Century Link (f/k/a Embarq), Spectrun\Bright House Network (f/k/a Time 
Warner Cable), Duke Energy (f/k/a Progress Energy), and Lake Apopka Natural Gas District have 
no objection to the abandonment of a portion of the existing utility easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances there 
exists no public need for this existing right-of-way; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 
Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said existing 
right-of-way. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit “A,” 
shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 
 
 LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

THE EAST 746.00 FEET OF THE SOUTH 60.00 FEET OF THE NORTHWEST 

¼ OF THE SOUTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 

27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. CONTAINING: 44,760 SQUARE 

FEET (1.03 ACRES +/-)  

            AND  

THE 40.00 RIGHT OF WAY LYING BETWEEN BLOCK M, BLOCK L, MAP 

OF PLYMOUTH, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN 

PLAT BOOK B, PAGE 17, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY 

FLORIDA, BEING BOUND ON THE WEST BY THE WEST LINE OF SAID 

MAP OF PLYMOUTH AND BOUND ON THE EAST BY STATE ROAD NO. 

429, LYING IN SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. CONTAINING: 47,337 SQUARE FEET (1.08 

ACRES +/-) 

 

TOTAL COMBINED ACREAGE: 92,097 SQUARE FEET, (2.11 ACRES +/-)  
 
 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and the 
Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 
recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 

268



ORDINANCE NO. 2541 

PAGE 2 
 
 

 
            Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 
this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate 
or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or 
part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 
adoption. 
 
      READ FIRST TIME:  December 7, 2016 
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  December 21, 2016 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________________  
Cliff Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  November 18, 2016 
        December 9, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Vacate\ 3 Ord 2541 -Mid Florida Freezer- Vacate - Unnamed Road– Ordinance-2541 

269



ORDINANCE NO. 2541 

PAGE 3 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

  

270



ORDINANCE NO. 2541 

PAGE 4 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289


	Top
	1. 12-21-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes - 11/30/16
	11-30-16 WS Draft.pdf

	2. 12-21-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes - 12/1/16 Groundbreaking
	12-01-16 Groundbreaking Draft.pdf

	1. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - CD - Capital Facility Payment Agreement - Emerson North Townhomes
	1 Emerson North Townhomes Capital Facility Fees Payment Agr green sheet.pdf
	2 Emerson North Townhomes Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement.pdf

	2. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Rec - Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Parade
	David - MLK Parade Staff Report.pdf
	David - MLK Parade Map.pdf

	3. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Rec - Event Alcohol Sales
	David - Alcohol Sales at City Events.pdf

	4. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PD Trust Fund
	PD - Summit Trust Funds.pdf
	12_21_16Crime Summit 2016 Memo.docx
	12_21_16Crime Summit Letter.pdf

	5. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Finance Department Part-time Position
	Part Time Accounting Clerk.pdf

	6. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - IT - Storage Array
	Dell EMC AFA_BCDR.pdf

	7. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS LS Pumps
	PS - LS Pumps.docx

	8. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS Heavy Duty Trucks
	PS - Heavy Duty Trucks.docx

	9. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Vac Con
	PS - Vac Con.docx

	10. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Ocoee Apopka Rd RWS EXt
	PS - Ocoee Apopka Rd RWS Bid 2016-19.docx

	11. 12-21-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Silver Oak Oversize Agree
	Silver Oak Oversizing Agree.docx

	1. 12-21-16 - CC - Business (Action) - Master Plan/Preliminary Dev. Plan - Vistas at Waters Edge
	1 Vistas at Waters Edge PDP - CC - 12-21-16.pdf
	2 - Vista at Waters Edge Site Plan.pdf
	3 - Vista at Waters Edge Landscape-Bufferwalls.pdf
	4 -Vista at Waters Edge Recreation Plan.pdf

	2. 12-21-16 - CC - Business (Action) - Final Development Plan - Tractor Supply
	1 Tractor Supply-Final Development Plan CC 12-21-16.pdf
	2 Site-Landscape-Photometrics.pdf
	3 Tractor Supply - Color Rendering.pdf

	1. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2499 - 2nd Rd - Large Scale FLUM - Cravey
	1 Jack &amp; Joyce Cravey - FLUM - CC 12-21-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Jack &amp; Joyce Cravey 16-4ESR State Agency Review Letters.pdf
	3 Ord 2499 - Jack &amp; Joyce Cravey LS FLUM.pdf

	2. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2510 - 2nd Rd - BTR VFH
	1 Ch 74 - Business Tax Receipt - VFH - CC 12-21-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord No 2510 - BTR - Vehicles for Hire.pdf

	3. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2511 - 2nd Rd - Vehicle for Hire (VFH)
	1 COO Ch 86 - Vehicle for Hire staff rpt CC 12-21-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2511 - Vehicles for Hire - FINAL 11-17-16 - inc TNC comments.pdf
	3 Lyft Comments and Amendments to Apopka 09-21-16 CC mtg.pdf

	4. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2531 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - Choe
	1 Ord 2531- Lee -Choe.pdf
	2- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2531 - Lee-Choe.pdf

	5. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2532 - 2nd Rd - FLUM - CFEA
	1 Central FL Expressway Authority-  - FLU - CC - 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2532  - Central FL Expressway Authority - FLU.pdf

	6. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2533 - 2nd Rd - ZON - CFEA
	1 Central FL Expressway Authority -  - ZON - CC 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2533 - Central FL Expressway Authority  ZON.pdf

	7. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2534 - 2nd Rd - Comp Plan Amendment - CIE
	1 5 Year CIP Annual Update - CC - 12-21-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2534 CIE Amendment CIP Annual Update.pdf

	8. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2535 - 2nd Rd - ZON - Cravey
	1 Jack &amp; Joyce Cravey -  ZON - CC - 12-07-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2535 - Jack &amp; Joyce Cravey ZON.pdf

	9. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2536 - 2nd Rd - FLUM - Howard
	1 Marshall Howard -  FLU - CC - 12-21-16.pdf
	2 Ord 2536  - Marshall Howard - FLU.pdf

	10. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2537 - 2nd Rd - ZON - Howard
	1 Marshall Howard Tropical Circle - ZON - CC 12-21-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2537 - Marshall Howard - 1351 Tropicana Circle - ZON.pdf

	11. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2538 - 2nd Rd - FLUM - Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC
	1 Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC - FLU - CC 12-21-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2538  - Property Industrial Enterprises LLC - FLU.pdf

	12. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2539 - 2nd Rd - ZON - Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC
	1 Property Industrial Enterprises - ZON - CC 12-21-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2539 - Property Industrial Enterprises - ZON.pdf

	13. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2540 - 2nd Rd - ZON - South Pass, LLC
	1 South Pass LLC -  ZON - CC 12-21-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2540 - South Pass LLC - ZON.pdf

	14. 12-21-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2541 - 2nd Rd - Vacate - Mid Florida Freezer Warehouses Ltd - ROW
	1 Mid Florida Freezer - Vacate CC 12-21-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Utility Letters.pdf
	3 Ord 2541 - Mid Florida Freezer - Vacate - Unnamed Road.pdf
	4 Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouse - Recorded 10-13-16 - Developer&apos;s Agreement.pdf

	Bottom

